=

=- L &

=

| 2

'g RN

S| OXFORD

E CITY
COUNCIL

Council Briefing Note

Date: Monday 24 June 2013

Time: 5.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Town Hall

For any further information please contact:

Mathew Metcalfe, Democratic and Electoral Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252214

Email: fullcouncil@oxford.gov.uk

The meeting will also be available via a webcast. This means that people may choose to
watch all or part of the meeting over the internet rather than attend in person. The webcast
will be available to view on the City Council's website after the meeting.






CONDUCT OF COUNCIL BUSINESS

(1)

3)

4)
)

Members should switch off mobile devices (or set them to flight mode)
unless:-

They are expecting an urgent call, in which case they should use the
vibrate mode for incoming calls and messages;

They are using a mobile device to read the Council agenda.

Ensure ipads are defaulting to WiFi;

Members should treat each other with mutual respect, should listen to
what Members say and should not interrupt or disrupt Member
speeches or addresses or questions by members of the public;

Council Business should be conducted through the Lord Mayor;
When the Lord Mayor stands to speak all Members should sit down;

Members when speaking should switch on and speak directly into the
microphone and refrain from moving around when speaking, as this
affects the audibility of their voice. They should also consider sitting
down when speaking. They should avoid banging the benches as the
loop is set up to counteract sudden sharp noises by cutting out
momentarily.

PART 1 - BUSINESS PART OF THE MEETING

APOLOGIES

Apologies have been received from Councillors Jones, Rundle and
Wilkinson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Guidance on this is contained within the main agenda. Members’ attention is
drawn to Section 22 of the Constitution.

If Members have queries about possible interests, would they please discuss
them with the Monitoring Officer before the meeting commences.

Pages



MINUTES

To be signed as a correct record by the Lord Mayor. The Constitution does
not permit any “matters arising”

See pages 1 to 54 of the main agenda.

APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES
ANNOUNCEMENTS

(a) The Lord Mayor

(b) The Sheriff

(c) The Leader of the Council

(d) Chief Executive, Chief Finance Office, Monitoring Officer

There are no announcements by the Statutory Officers.

PUBLIC ADDRESSES AND QUESTIONS THAT RELATE TO
MATTERS FOR DECISION AT THE COUNCIL MEETING

NOTE: for items 6 and 11 combined, the Constitution sets a time limit of
45 minutes. If there is insufficient time to take all of the addresses and
questions, the Constitution says that a written response will be given to
each of the questions not taken.
Addresses

Jack Bloomer - Supporting the Financial Transactions Tax.

Text attached to the Briefing Note. The address relates to Motion 1.

Questions

None

EXECUTIVE BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS

Transfers to Earmarked Reserves — CEB 12" June, minute 6,
recommendation 3. The report considered by CEB is attached to the Briefing
Note.




10

11

OFFICER REPORTS

See pages 55 to 64 of the main agenda.

The Leader will move adoption of the recommendation.

CITY EXECUTIVE BOARD MINUTES - QUESTIONS

For the minutes of the meetings held on:
22" April 2013

7" May 2013

12" June 2013

Please see pages 65 to 78 of the main agenda

The Constitution sets a time limit of 15 minutes for questions arising
from this item

QUESTIONS ON NOTICE FROM MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

This item is not time limited

Details of these questions and the replies given are attached to this Briefing
Note.

PART 2 — PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND SCRUTINY

PUBLIC ADDRESSES AND QUESTIONS THAT DO NOT RELATE
TO MATTERS FOR DECISION AT THE COUNCIL MEETING

NOTE: for items 6 and 11 combined, the Constitution sets a time limit of
45 minutes. If there is insufficient time to take all of the addresses and
questions, the Constitution says that a written response will be given to
each of the questions not taken.
Addresses and questions with responses are attached to this Briefing Note.
Addresses

Mark Stone — MND (Motor Neurone Disease) Charter

(The MND Charter has been placed in Members’ pigeonholes in the

Members’ area)

Fran Ryan — Community Led homes in Oxford;

William Clark — The Consultation Process;

55-70

71-90



12

13

14

15

Nigel Gibson — Openness and Transparency;

Daniel Tomlinson and Sarah Santhosham - Oxford University
Students’ Union Charities and Community;

Rowen Smith - Full Circle and Charity Mentors
(Details of these charities have been placed in Members’ pigeonholes
in the Members’ area)

Questions

Andrew Brough — Teaching children to swim;

Sue Brough — Previous public consultation on building new pool in
Blackbird Leys;

Cathy Wheeler — The legal nature of Oxford City Council;

Sietske Boeles — Potential risk to the environment caused by the
Castle Mill development;

Jane Alexander — Access to swimming pools;

Adrian Arbib — Photo montages for the Roger Dudman Way
development

PETITIONS

None submitted

OUTSIDE ORGANISATION REPORTS AND QUESTIONS

None submitted

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - REPORTS FROM THE CHAIR

Report attached to main agenda at pages 79 to 86

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

None submitted




16

PART 3 — MOTIONS — REPRESENTING THE CITY

MOTIONS ON NOTICE

The Constitution provides for a total time of 60 minutes for this agenda
item. Members’ speeches are subject to a maximum of 3 minutes.

All Motions are attached to this Briefing Note, as follows:-

(1) Financial Transactions Tax — proposed by Councillor Bob Price,
seconded by Councillor James Fry;

(2) Community Budgets — proposed by Councillor Jean Fooks;
(3) Tar Free Oxford — proposed by Councillor Sam Hollick;

(4) Supermarket Levy — proposed by Councillor Craig Simmons,
seconded by Councillor David Williams;

(5) Supporting Youth Employment — proposed by Councillor David
Williams, seconded by Councillor Sam Hollick;

(6) Impartiality of the Planning Process — proposed by Councillor David
Williams, seconded by Councillor Elise Benjamin;

(7) Supporting the Robin Hood Tax — proposed by Councillor Elise
Benjamin

91-94






Agenda Item 6

AGENDA ITEM 6

PUBLIC ADDRESSES AND QUESTIONS THAT RELATE TO MATTERS
FOR DECISION AT THIS MEETING.

Relates to: Item 16 — Motions on Notice

1 Supporting the Financial Transactions Tax- Jack Bloomer

We the undersigned are writing to ask you to show Oxford City
councils’ support for the introduction of a Financial Transaction Tax
(FTT) otherwise known as the Robin Hood Tax.

Many of us students in Matthew Arnold school live in the city and West
Oxford which is why we decided to approach the Oxford City Council
through the local councillor for West Oxford — Susanna Pressel.

As students from Matthew Arnold’s sixth’s form we believe that the
impact of the cuts is making the country more unfair and unequal,
restricting our future opportunities, and making it a place that we do not
want to grow up in. Three issues of particular concern to us, as
students and teenagers, are the abolition of EMA, the increase in
university of tuition fees, and lack of funding to combat climate change

We recognize that this has largely been due to the actions of central
government in cutting grants to local authorities, but we believe this
Council could be doing more to stand up for our country’s future by
speaking up for alternatives to the austerity approach of central
government.

With unemployment at 2.5 million, growth stagnant across the country,
frontline public services strapped for resources, and lack of action on
climate change, we believe that without an alternative approach the
world that the youth of this country will inherit looks bleak. This is why
we think the Council should take a formal stand against this — and the
FTT would be an important step in doing so.

An FTT would raise up to £20bn a year in the UK. It would see wealthy
people and institutions in the financial sector help clear up the mess
they caused, rather than today’s youth paying with our futures and
ordinary people paying with their jobs, frozen or lower wages, and
declining public services . Local government has felt the cuts more
than most, and should be at the forefront of the fight back against these
centrally-imposed measures.

| write to ask you to bring forward a motion calling on the government
to introduce an FTT, and secure formal backing for it from this Council.
In doing so, you would be making a real, and popular, contribution to
our collective future.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

To: City Executive Board
Date: 12th June 2013 Item No:
Report of: Head of Finance

Head of Business Improvement and Technology

Title of Report: Integrated Report 4th Quarter 2012/2013

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To update Members on Finance, Risk and Performance
as at the end of Quarter 4, 31% March 2013.

Key decision: No

Executive lead member: Councillor Ed Turner

Policy Framework: Improving value for money and service performance
Recommendation(s):

The City Executive Board are requested to

a) Note the financial outturn and performance of the Council for the year
2012/13 and also the risks outstanding as at 31 March 2013.

b) Agree the transfer to earmarked reserves of unspent budgets detailed
in paragraphs 7 to be used in 2013/14 and beyond.

c) To agree the transfer to earmarked reserves from the HRA as detailed
in paragraph 10 and recommend to Council the approval of appropriate
budgets in 2013/14 and beyond for these items.

Executive Summary
Below is a brief list of the performance for 2012/13;

e General Fund - the outturn position equated to 100% of the Latest
Budget and was achieved after transferring both service area and
contingency savings to earmarked reserves that have been
created to accommodate future Capital Programme priorities.

o Efficiencies, Additional Income, Service Reduction targets -
99% of these were met following additional mitigating
circumstances.

e Housing Revenue Account — an additional surplus of £2.4million
was created during the year. This has similarly assisted in
transferring resources to specific HRA earmarked reserves to
accommodate future Capital Programme priorities



e Capital Programme — the outturn position equated to 96% of the
Latest Budget.

e Performance — Corporate target performance indicated at year
end that 79% were either delivered as planned or were exceeded.
Individual service area performance is detailed on Appendices C-F.

Background

1.

Historically Finance, Performance and Risk have been reported
separately to the City Executive Board with little documented
consideration of the interrelationship of these three key elements of
management information.

An integrated reporting approach is one which enables a more holistic
picture to be presented and understood. It is a concept many local
authorities have and are grappling with.

Attached at Appendix B-F are the Council’'s Corporate and Directorate
Integrated Performance reports. They have been produced using
CorVu, the Council’s performance management system and utilises a
Red, Amber and Green reporting methodology.

Financial Implications

Detailed financial analysis is shown in Appendix G with a further 3
supplement appendices detailing the GF, Capital and HRA outturn
positions.

A summary is provided below of the main areas variances associated
with the General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and total Capital
Programme.

General Fund Revenue

After allowing for budgeted transfers from the General Fund working
balance of £1.622million and other net transfers to reserves the
Council net expenditure was £20.778million for the year some
£3.335million below its budgeted net expenditure of £24.113million.
The variations primarily relate to the anticipated £1.241million
Directorate underspends coupled with the non-use of several budgeted
contingencies, namely Employee Inflation contingency of £0.624million
the Pensions Provision Top Up contingency of £0.200million and
£0.841million from the unachieved savings contingency, together with
a £0.700million (0.9% of gross spend) favourable variance associated
with the Local cost of Benefits. The cumulative impact of these created
a surplus at year end of £3.335million the majority of which was
transferred to an earmarked reserve to fund temporary car parking and
other related activities in connection with the redevelopment of
Westgate in the City Centre.

Some of the more significant transfer to earmarked reserves includes :

General Fund



e Transfer to severance reserve to fund future redundancy
payments - £0.508million

e Transfer of grants received pending usage - £1.139million

e Transfer to homelessness reserve - £0.650million

e Transfer to cover estimated the 2013/14 partnership payment
£0.485million

e Transfer to cover future flood works - £0.150million

e Transfer for unspent budget carried forward to 2013/14 -
£0.765million. These are summarised below with details shown
in Appendix 4 of Appendix G.

CARRY FORWARDS SUMMARY

Approved Not Total
Approved

Service £000’s £000’s £000’s
Policy and 0 30 30
Communications

City Development 150 7 157
Housing 0 140 140
Leisure 0 5 5
Direct Services 150 100 250
Community Development 237 8 245
Customer Services 124 134 258
HR and Facilities 83 0 83
Law and Governance 21 0 21
TOTAL 765 424 1,189

. During the year the Council incurred flooding emergency response
costs, totalling £0.161million. Whilst we recognise that only the
“additional” costs incurred are ordinarily claimed back from the
Government under the Bellwin scheme, this is only approved for new
areas of flooding, not repeat areas. As such the “additional”
expenditure incurred was both unbudgeted and ineligible for grant
claim.

Housing Revenue Account

. The latest budget for the Housing Revenue Account projected a deficit
position of £1.321million. The actual outturn produced a net surplus of
£1.080million, approximately £2.4million more than budgeted due to
less funding needed for the HRA capital programme and increased
income from both dwelling and non-dwelling rents. In addition a
provision of £1.2million in respect of a rent review on Southfield Park
was no longer required following a successful negotiated settlement.
£7million was transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve to either fund
the increased HRA capital programme from 2013/14 onwards or have
the option to repay debt. More detailed explanations of the variances
incurred are detailed in Appendix G.



10.In addition to the transfer to the Major Repairs Reserve other transfers
of £0.815million to be spent on schemes in 2013/14 and beyond

included :
e Stock condition survey - £0.250million
¢ HRA Staff Partnership Payments for next 3 years £0.100million
e Tenancy Fraud Officer salary 1 year £0.033million
e Alley Gating works £0.100million
e Future HRA Structure Reviews £0.150million
e HRA Carry Forward Requests £0.182million

11.The HRA working balance remains at c. £3.7million moving into
2013/14, which is considered a prudent level to cover unforeseen
variations on HRA income and expenditure. It is also in accordance
with the levels agreed by CEB as part of the 2013/14 Budget Report
whereby a minimum working balance of £3.5million was recommended
so as to cover unexpected eventualities including increased RTB’s,
increased rent arrears, falling investment rates and unforeseen costs.

Capital

12. Capital expenditure outturn was £16.323million split £8.733million and
£7.590million between General Fund and HRA respectively. This
compared to an original approved budget of £27.86million the main
variation relating to the delayed construction of the new completion
pool at Blackbird Leys of around £8million.
Legal Implications

13.There are no legal implications directly relevant to this report.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name: Nigel Kennedy, Jane Lubbock

Job title: Head of Finance, Head of Business Improvement and Technology
Service Area / Department: Finance, Business Improvement and Technology
Tel: 01865 252708 e-mail: nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk, jlubbock@oxford.gov.uk

List of background papers:
Version number:




Appendix A

Principles of the integrated report

The key principles applied in producing the report are:

Exception reporting utilising clear graphical summaries, followed by
narrative which focuses only on those issues that requires attention.

Narrative which pulls together and makes the links between risk, finance
and performance to form a holistic view and incorporating trend data.

CorVu will be used to create the base data for the report from existing
information (i.e. no additional work created for Services).

Some entries for performance monitoring and risk monitoring are shown
as “no data”. What this means when referring to performance measures is
the indicator is not required to be calculated for the period reported. For
risk it is because the previous quarterly measurement was not undertaken
so no assessment of the risk being increased or reduced is possible.

The distinction between a summary Corporate-level view and Directorate-
level picture of performance is retained and the latter enhanced by the
inclusion of, service plan target performance

The detail of the existing finance report will be appended to the integrated
as it is needed to enable decisions to be taken at executive level
(authorisations, virements etc.)

The following tolerances apply to the financial dials:

o Green — Forecast outturn is within 100% of the latest approved
budget

o Amber — Forecast outturn is within 100% - 105% of the latest
approved budget

o Red - Forecast outturn is over 105% of the latest approved
budget. Performance in this area is a potential concern and will be
commented on within the report.

What Do the Dials Show?

Several items are displayed below each dial.

Budget This is the monetary value of the Latest Budget for the
above dial

Forecast This is the projected outturn position i.e. what we think the
year-end spend will be

Variance Difference between the Latest Budget and the Projected
Outturn (Forecast)

Prev Qtr The projected outturn estimated at the time of the previous
quarter

Movement Change in projected outturn for the previous quarter with

the projected outturn for the current quarter. Please note




that the projected outturn for the previous quarter can be
retrospectively revised if additions/transfers to latest
budget levels have taken place during the interim.

Performance Summary

This section is broken down into 3 sub-sections;

e Current Quarter’s information on performance targets broken down
between the RAG categories.

e A summary of the previous quarter’s position.

e Direction of Travel table displaying the movement between categories
from one quarter to the next.

Risk Management

This section is similarly broken down into the same 3 sub-sections;

e Current Quarter’s information on performance targets broken down
between the RAG categories.

¢ A summary of the previous quarter’s position.

e A Direction of Travel table displaying the movement between
categories from one quarter to the next.




wgob gL (wpd vy (wwbe (%ol o [e0 )

oL GEl | [EANI] [12UN07) aalday] pue ey Uy

pouad el 0 ] [EANN] pioE D Jauaals Jauealy

Ieaf inoj Jeno %, ] %00 S8IUUNLILLIOS BTy pue Buols

suononpa) 196png %G (%0 0 pasy Buisnoy Bunaay

3 186png w1 sBuiaes sasiyoe o) Ajpgey)| aAsIyde o) sINjie4iZLo-H YD) oL e ALUouU02g 8|qEUIEISNS PUE JUEIGQLA,

SIOBJIUOD 3S0L)
L0l aNjeA 158g UIBIQO 0] pUe SIDenuo)| JusWwabeury abuey)
abie| sbeuew o} punod sy} Jo ANy 1enddnslonn-4yo oN el oN
‘aiadde ¥su
Mo| ‘pabeinoaua 1ou s1 uoneAouy] ‘Jood [2AELL JO U=
aq ued Bupjewl uoisnaq spaloud Bumno
‘sjesieldde suondo Jno AUBD 'SUOISIDaP| S5012 JaMBp

JEHEND Snolaald

paseq ysu ayeuw o} Apuaniyns padojaaap| o} Ajijige = spaloid
10U 3I8 [1DUN0I 3Y) pue ajdoad £y Jo AIamRa00-HHD

(apiuah U fusdoid 1aquryg ele( o

- 5WBdUd dijgnd S [|am Se [BLujul

0} Bunejal) sysu feuonesado Jo sousisixg| Alsjes pue yieay |J00-4H D (%¥2) 1L E_a 0 (wagd s (%obo eo]
JuaUag buISNoH %0 B %00 [3UN0) 8H1984T pUe Ay Uy
SSauSSaaLIOY ui sabueyd N . RADJK () daUaaIs) Jauea)

asealoul Nauag Guisnoy [eslaalun|  JO SSaUSSIjBWIOY AN _ saljunuLI0y aallry pue Buoilg
pue wauag Buisnoy ul sabueydy uo pedw| g L0-HHD @m paap buisnoy Aunaay
| Twoo | Auouoag ajqewielsns pue JueIqA

ipai 0}

paulj2aq puail m._.._.omq..,.m_m..ﬂoﬂ&m uonduasag AioBajes
L eje( oN
“_._.._m_._._m.mm_.._m________ HSIY h._m_._.__._._:m aJuelllollad
O00'PGE-3  uaWSADp O00'S42-3  Auswsangy 03 AUBLISADKY WFI'GEE-3  Auswasgy OOO'ELF3  Auswasopy OODFEE'L3  uawaAD)y
052°0997E23 N A=id L2985k 3 N asig OO0FLEE-3 D A=d LAVBFLALE NP Asid OO0'EEF L3 i asg 000022223 i Aeid
GLODBLE HIUBLE #, AN HIUBLE S, 0o0°0E3 HAUBLR S, L5 '8EL-3 HAUBLR S, 000 LOF'E-3  =auenes IE; HAURLEf,
0529057223 easing IFZ'L895F3  JsEDRI04 000FIZE-3  Hsedaiog 9EOETERLE hEEDAIO4 0000803 AsEDAI0y O00FLLFEE  seasing
LEZ'9TECT 3 =bpng PIC4E5aR3 ebpng 000F¥EE-3 1e6png 28471900413 1e6png 000" LEE" L3 =bpng oooeLErEs 1ebpng
£331A12G pue saddng saadopdwy salouarniy)j |enden pun 4 |elauar

aJueWIOMad [el12UeUl

£1/Z10Z ¥O 2)elodiod -Loday pajelbaju)
g xipuaddy



awlooul [euonippe pies jey| ‘pauue|d Ajjeulblio se palaaljep Jou aiam sjebie) Aousiolye aWoS ‘PalaAllep 8I1aM 8Say) JO WL Z €F JO [el0) B Jeak

[BIDUBUI BU} JO pUS aY} Iy Wit g €3 JO Jeak ay) 10} Jablie} e pey 1ouno) ayy sabiey)) pue saa] [euoippy pUe SUoilonpay 90IA18S 'Saloualon] 104

"BaJe SIY} Ul sUop aq ||is Ued ai0w ey} pasiubooal si ) ng Jeak siyy swwelboud
ejdeo ayj Jo Buuaaidp sy} pue Buliojuow ayj ul Juswaaoidwi Juedliubis usaq sey alay] Aujioes jood Buiwwims mau s Al 8yl Yim pajeldoosse ajep
He)s paliajep ay) 0} pajejal Ajurew ‘Jeak ayj Jo 9sin0d ay} Bulnp spew usaq pey sawwelbold [eulblio ay) woly wg QL3 JOAO JO SUoloNpal [elueisqns

Jaye sem SIy} ‘JOASMOH WEE/ 0F SEeM D Je UINino pua-1eak eur} oy} pue uonisod Jobpng pajoalold 1Sa)e| ay} Usamiaq JuaiaAow oy} [eyde)) 104

‘wiepd |eul Z1/1L 10Z @Yl Jo 1ipne [eulaxa ay} buimojio} 910 wodj Apisgns Buisnoy aAiebau jo WL £z 0F JO Juswasinqui-a1 e Yyum Buoje sjual
Buljjemp-uou pue Buljjemp Yoq WoJj aWwodul [euolippe pue palinbal Jabuo| ou sem jey) uoisinoid yled plauyinos ay) Jo [esianal a8y} Woly Ja| adueleq
3y} Yyim pajeldoosse s821nosal ‘awwelbold [e)ided yyH 8y} Joj papasu wye 03 JO Buipuny anuaaal Jamo| Aq pasned Jeah sy} ul Wi z3 snidins

[euoilippe Ue Sem aJay| "WE Ly 0F SeM D 18 puads pua-ieal jeulj ayj pue uoijisod uinno pajaslold ¢ sy} Usamiaq JUsWSAOW By} Y yH 3y} o4

‘aljuad Buiddoys ajebisapp au} Jo Juawdojansp-al ay) Bulnp sanjioe) Bunjed Jeo Aleijodwa) 10} aAIaSay Yiewle] oi10ads e 0] WES'CF JO Jajsuel) ayl
Buiaqg Juawalinbal urew ay) yum Jauenb 1se| ay) Buunp apew aiam salouabunuod teah-ul jsuiebe spuadsiapun umouy Buipiebal suoisioeq "W/ Gz 03

Aluo sem ) 1e puads pua-ieaA |euly ay} pue uoiisod uinino pajoslold £ Byl usamiag JUSWSA0W SAI}I3||00 8y} S81el0}dali(] pun4 [BJausxs) ay} Jo4

‘suoijoaloud 3abpnq 3saje| ysuiebe pooh sem asuewopad |eloueuly [[el1dAQ

TTVY3AO0 FONVNIL

‘papualul Ajjeuibrio se syoaload uo 1aAlap 03 asuepiodwi ay} se ||am

SE Ssjuleljsuod |eloueul Buisealoul 19Ad Burinp sjuapisal pue siawolsnd 1oj paAoidwi Ajjenuijuod ale sainseaw asuewlojiad Bulunsua
yym J1ayjaboj ‘surewas Bunojluow pue Buiabpng 3snqod panupuod ainsua 0} paau ayj ybiybiy |je uoijualay sajey ssauisng punoue
sabueys ypm 1ayj}abo) ‘mainay Buipuadg aAisuayaidwon aininj pue Jualind ay} uaAlib saloualdiyya 19A18p 0} AJljige ‘Wiojal aiejom

pue ssaussajawoy o} bune|as sjeaty} [eutaixa ayj Ajjediounid yum pajersosse sysid ajesodiod ay] "yL/SL0Z Ul wQyF 19A0 0} pasealoul sey
yoiym ‘awwesboud ejides s 1ounog ayj uo BuriaAlap jm se buibuajeys aq |jm syabae) Aouaioiyya uo buliaalap Ajjenuiuos jo ssaiboud
9y} ‘aJowayling "1eak ayj} 10} pajlsi| sainseawl aduewloliad paiiyuapl e Buliaaldp uo pajoedwl sey siyjy se buipabie) pue Buipsesaloy
19)39q paau saop sanuold pauue|d Jsuiebe Buipuads ‘1aramoH -Juawdojanaqg ajebisapp 10} wg ¢F apiaoad 0} Aj1Issasau ayj ueyl os alow
auou asue Aay} uaym pue se spaau }abpnq o} puodsal 0} Aiqixalj pue Ajoedes pajeald sey yoeoadde siy) ‘Buiiojiuow 3abpng paaoidu
se ||am se ssadoud Buipas 3abpng ayj uiypm sarpuabuijuod jo uoisinoid ayj Buipunoluns AGojopoylaw ay) pue s}abie} Aoualdiyd

juauind Buuaaiap o} yoseoadde si6ajesys ayj 03 anp Ajjediourid Buoays sulewal joojno pajoaloid pue uonisod [eroueuly s [IouUnNo0) ay |

NOILISOd AUVININNS TTVHIAO

AYVINNNS 31VH0dH0D

b

10



ainbiy ay| ‘eouewlopad Z|/1 L0z Uo Juswanoidwl 9%, /9 B sluasaidal pue ‘9,06 Jo 196.e) e 01 paiedwod %80 gy sem alel BuljoAoal pus-i1eah ay |
pajsodwod 10 pajoAoal aysem pPjoyasnoH

‘Buines wnuue Jad w0} PUNOJE Ul UOONPaJ B UBSW ||IM SIY} [N}SS00NS JI ‘Jiedal yes| 004 A8SyUIH 38U} JO SNJE}S 8y} JO UOIEWIIUOD
Bunieme ale am ‘JoASMOH "gWi| |/t Jo 196Je) B 0} paiedwod SW | ‘S SEM PaAIYoe uoldWNSUOD J3JeM Ul UOI}ONPal 3y} €102 Y2JE JO pus syl i
uondwnsuod J13JeM S IDUN0Y) ay] Ul Uoijonpay

"SpuaJ} |euoijeu jsuiebe sjaAs| uoljoeysies Jno ul sabueyd a1edwod 0} SN MOJ|e [|IM PUB YT SU} YIim 8SI10J9Xd
|[euoljeu Japim e Jo Jed se uayeuapun aq |IM ASAINS S Jeah IXaN "uoljoe)siiessIp passaldxa pey oym [dued ,Suaziji) ay} Jo siaquiaw yim sdnolb snooy
Buipjoy Buipnjour ‘synsal 8say) Jo} SUOSESI 8Y} PUB}SISpUN JBJa( 0} suop Buiaq Ajjuaind sI YIONN "%+ JO 8jes Aoeindoe ue Bunib ‘G sem sasuodsal

JO Jaquunu |ejo} 8yl "%/8 Jo 1ob.e} e 0} pasedwod ZL0Z 10} %8 €8 01 | LOZ Ul %98 WOl ud|ie} Sey aAl| 0} 92e|d e se eale |[e20] Sy} YIm uoioelsies
spooyinoqubiau 1IN0 yim uonoejsies

}soIy a1ebisap) ayi Je pajeald qol suo pue |jeH a)ebyloN Ul Jueine}say s||ig 1e sqol Gy ‘19a.1S |9yl 1S Uo 310y

ay} Jo Buiuado ay} ypm pajeasd aiam sqol g1 ‘py suadxQ je siieday Je) auQ enwio sqol 0| ‘1S ab1oas) gg/eg 1e sqol G| ‘@snoH Aaswey Je uonop
[euonen wody scel g/ AnD ayy ul saipadoud jo Buips| syl ybnouyy Jeah siyy pajeald usaq aney sqol mau Jo Jaquinu yy “jood uoniadwod ay} Se yons
‘Buissaiboid syoslosd uoionisuod Jolew uo jJuspuadap usaq pey yaiym 94z Jo 1obuey e 0} pasedwod sqol mau /g sem Jeak ay) 1oy uonisod [euly ay |
SalIAloe J1aylo pue s}oaloid JuawisaAul [12uno) ybnouyl pajeald sqol pue sade|d buluiel) Jo Jaquinu ay |

|leJHoyS |lewsS SIY} 19SHO UBY} 210W aABY Jey} SUOIIoNpal 92I1AISS JO SWOdUI pasSealdul JO seale Jaylo Buipnjoul

‘Hodal ay} Jo o xipuaddy ul papinoid ale s|ie}ap Jayun4 “Jeah ayj Jo pua ay} Joj 000°'Z81 /3 40 1obuey ay) Buissiw Aimodteu ‘000 190 L3 Jo sbuines
Aduai014e aaleINWIND 0} pajnquiuoo siy] “sbuines Bunebiiw ul 000 €13 JBYHN) B pUB ‘PaJSAIBp a1am SaI0USIdIYd JO 000205 L3 ‘SL/Z10z Buung
sbuines Aouaioiya s |1ouno? ayi jo Aidalieq

suonndaosxa Jojedipul aduew.soyiad ajesodio)
‘Papaa0Xa 10 Panalyoe alam s}ablie} JO %06 248Um ZL/L 10z Jos uonisod Jeak Jo pus sy} uo uoionpal e si siy |

“MOJ3q uoNjoas suondaoxa ayj Ul Jno }as ale seale aouewlouad [enpiaipul ul syabie) passipy 1eble) Jiayy passiw Buiaey (%9z) G pue
‘pus 1eak Aq papaaoxa Jo pauueld se pasaalap siebiel (%1/) 1 Yyum pooo si s}abie) ajesodiod sy jsuiebe aosuewiopiad s |1ouno) ay} ||eIdAQ

JONVINHO4¥3d

"salyjenjuaAa ||e ainjdeo suoijoaloid J86png ainsua 0} UoKUa}e 2J0W Pasu O}
SNUIUOD Op SE3JE BDIAISS SWOS (JSASMOY Poob sem sjosfoid [eyide) pue yYyH ‘49 S,1ouno) 8y} Jo seale 1abpng jsow jo Bulojuow sy} Buisewwng

"919|dWO09 %,/6 I9M €1/Z10Z 10} paralyoe Ajlenjoe
uononpay aoinlag/sabiey pue sea4 [BUOIIPPY/S3I0UBI0ILT JO [9A9] 8y} sanss! bunebiyiw asay) Joj Bununoooe Jaye jeyl painsus Jeak ay) ul pajelausb

11



‘uonisod Burioyuow siauenb 1s.1 8y} Ul pajogjal aq ||Im uonisod pasiAal SIY} pue SySII 3sayl mainal Alybnoloy)

0] wes| juawabeuel ajelodio) ay} Aq uayeuspun aq o} Ajoys pauueld si asiolaxa Jaded yue|q, i "pauueld Ajjeuiblio se 3ainb se usaq jou Ajgeqoud
sey ssaJboud ‘yuawanroidwi [eiauab e usaqg sey alay} 1S|IYAA Jeak ayy Buunp sauobajed palsiaquie ay) ul paulewal aAey sy sl ajelodiod Auew 00 |
‘pauue|d Ajjeulblio sem jeym mojaq Ajpybijs uaaq sey Juawabeuew ¥su ||BIBAQ

MSIH

"21sem Jo adA} siy} Jo uonealisse|o ay} Buiuiaouod sany
ayj 0} sabueyd Buimo|jo} sieak snoinaid uo uosLiedwod ayi| 1oy Y| e aAIb 0}  sbuisiie deams }a9au)s, 10} Juswisnlpe pus Jeak 9,6 ¢ paaibe ue sapnjoul

12



(%6L) S (%8¥) €L (%22)9 (%l € |ejol
| (%001) 2 AN (%0) 0 90UBUIBAOS) pUE MET
| (%08) ¥ BCAMEM  (%0) 0 Sel|Ioe4 pue $80N0SaY UewnH
- (%62) z EADINN  (%0) 0 aoueul
| (%9%) S BEAZEA (%0) 0 S90IAI9S Jawo}sn)

ABojouyoa |
E (CAONO (%S.) € pue juswanoidw| ssauisng

abueyo

ON Bujuioag

ejeg ON 9JIAI9S

|[oAeI] JO uondallqg

| (%62) 6 [ICAV

(%¥) | JolEeNd snoinald

ejeq ON
(%€9) 51  (%8€)6  (%0)0 (%0) 0 lejol
(%09) | INCAVN; (%0) 0 9OUBUJOAOD pue MET

(%07) ¢ ENCAVNY (%0) 0 Sal|ioe4 pue $80JN0S8y Uewny

(AN (%0) 0 (%0) 0 soueUIl4

(%0) 0 (%0) 0 (%0) 0 S92IAIBG Jawo}sn)

| (%S2) L | (%S2) ¢ IMCAVK) (%0) 0 pue juswanoidw| ssauisng

pay ejeq oN CLITVEYS

Arewwng ysiy
0009L1-3  USWLAOW 000°/81-3  USWSAON 000°LL3 “JUBWBAON
000°100°€3 1D AdId 00008023 D AdId 00087023 D AdId
0009223 ‘0uelLep 000°2L23 :90uBLIBA 000°201-3 :o0uBLIBA
000'G28‘'c3  ‘isedalod 000°€68°'L3  Iseoalod 000°G90'C3  seoalod
000'6¥5'C3 196png 000919°L3 :1ebpng 000°2LLC3 :196png

saljioe

90UBUIBA0Y) pue meT] pue sadlnosay uewnH QoueulH

(%Le) SL  (%62) 2L (%¥e)¥L  (%0)0 [ejo] pueio
(%09) L [EAEIM (%0) 0 9OUBUJOAOS) pUE MET]

(%02) | CAEA (%0)0 Sal}[IoB4 pUE S82IN0SAY UBWNY

%8¢) 9 MCATAEM (%0) 0 @oueul

- (%0) 0 BEAEPE (%0) 0 Se0IAI9G JAWO)SND
I ABojouyos |

(%29) ¥ INCANY (%0) 0 pue juswanoldw| ssauisng

abueys
ON FUNTEETaM ejeq ON

|[oAeRI] JO uonodaliqg

CLITVETS

(%21) . AW (%2l) S Japenp snoinald

(%Ls) 1z (%0) 0  (%L8)SL  (%2ZL) S lejol
(%0) 0 (%0) 0 (%0) 0 9OUBUIDAOS) pue meT

| (%0) 0 MCATKAN (%0)0 sslj|ioe4 pue $80JN0Sey UBwWNY

(%000 MEAZIVE (%0)0 soueUl

(%0) 0 MCASEN (%Zh) S S90IAI9G JBWO}sn)

(%0) 0 (%0) 0 (%0) 0 pue juswanoidw| ssauisng

Alewwng asuewuoyiad

pay

90IAI0Q

000L¥-3 “JUBWIBAO 0002€3 “JUBWIBAO 03 JUBSWIBAO
000°28L°C3 10 Aeld 000°1GZ'€3 1D Asld 000°1293 1D A8Id
000°L¥3 :@0ueleA 0002¢-3 :@ouelepn 03 :@0ueleA
000°GELC3 :1sedalo4 000°€82°€3 ‘1sedalo4 000°1293 -sedalo4
00088923 106png 000'GLE'€3  19Bpng 0001293 10Bpng

ABojouyos ) pue
wswanoidw| ssauisng

S9JIAIBGS Jawolsn)

uolneuwiojsuel |

9ouewuo}lad |eloueuly
€1/21L0Z ¥O S921A198 djeio0dion pue Juawdojana JeuonesiuebiQ -J1oday pajeibajul

9 xipuaddy



I #1/$10Z Ul 9ouewlouad [eroueuly Jo Aujnios asuajul 210W 3)BISSa0aU MOU S0P SIY] "@2IAIRS B} UIYIM S8Jjud2 1S09 Jaylo S$SoJoe spuads Japun
AQ 19SH0 (WGZO 03) Seouemo|e siaquiay 4oy |[ejuoys Aielebpng 2110)sIy e pue (WO 03) S1S00 ashojdws pajebpnqun ‘(wpzo 03 ) @wodul gnH |ebaT
ul ||ejloys e (wgLo'03 ) uonedisibal [B10}09|8 10} S1S00 BuISSEAUEBD [EUOIIPPE JO Pa}SISUOD puadsIaA0 ay} Jo Japulewal ay | “wieo juelb Joj a|qibiaul
pue pajebpngun yjogq sem palinoul ainjipuadxa |euonippe, ay} Yyons sy “seale jeadal jou ‘Buipooy) jo seale mau 1o} panoidde Ajuo si SIy} ‘awayos
uIm||ag ay} Japun JUaWUIBA0S) 8y} WO} }oeq pawield Ajlieulplo ale palindul S}sod Jeuociippe, ayl AJuo jey} asiubooal am IS|IypA "24juad 3soo Buluued
AousbBiawa ayy Japun paje|os! uaaq aAey Yyoiym s}sod asuodsal Aouabiawa Buipooyy [e10}, 8y} sjuasaldal Ydiym jo w9l 03 ‘Wadsiano wg/z 03

92UBUJIIAOL) pue meT

"Jeak a8y} 1o} W/ /Z'0F JO puadsiano Jau e sem alay) |[eJanQ “sieble) aouewiopad 19s Buinaiyoe uo joedwl ssop
1ey) JeaA ay) buunp paddis sssjayiauou aney bBuluiely ajelodiod pue sdiysaonuaidde ‘69 saaneniul aye1odiod Asy Jo Ajigesanlsp sy} ‘@iouwiayun
"©1/Z10z Buunp eale a21AI8S SIY} Jo} Buliojuow ay} Ul Juswwo? Jeinbal e usaq aney sjabie} swooul |leH umo | Buinaiyoe Buipiefal suiaduo)

S31}1]19B4 PUB S32IN0S3Y UBWNH

19bpngq 1sa1e| 8y} 1suiebe
W/0L 03 JO @oUBLIBA 9|QBINCAR) PUR-JESA 3} 0} SIOINGIUOD UIBW 3I9M JIpNE [eulalul pue [eulajxa uo puad]s pue sauejes ul sbuines pua-ieah

aoueul4

‘Buibuajeyo urewsal eale 80IAI8S SIY} UIYIm sbuines Aouaioiye Jaaisp 0} Aljige ay) pue
Jeak |ejoueul) ayy Jo ey 1sdiy sy} Bulinp 1seoaloy suonoaloid puadsiano abie| ssajayloUoU 19M 213y} ‘Pasiieal Sem W/ 0 03 4o puadsiano ybis e Ajuo
1S[IYM pus-Jeah 1y "ulaouo9 JO SI Jeak |eloueul) 8y} JO 8SIn02 ay} Bulinp eale a21AI8S SIY} YIim pajeldoosse suoijisod uinjiino pajosloud jo Ayjije|on ay |

S921A13G J2WO0}SN)
"ssauisng ay} jo apis ABojouyossy sy} uo Wzeo 03 Aq Juadsiapun sem eale 92IAISS By} ||BJaAQD

ABojouyoa ] pue juswaroidw) ssauisng

aJuBWIOLIad |eldueul] ajelo}daliq

14

I

"Japenb snoinaid ayy 0} paiedwod G|, 0} 7]

wioJ} pasealoul 18ble} 4o sainseaw Jo Jaquinu a8y “Jauenb snoinaid ay} Jo pus ay} 18 %G 0} pasedw oD { Jaueny) Jo pua ay} je 1abie} buipaaoxa Jo Buisaw
MOU salnseaw JO 9% |G ypm Ajpybijs Buiuijosp aouewlopad ajelo}oaliq ||BIJSAC YlIMm padiojuldl si SIy] “JaysiBal 3su S,8)e10}0aliq Sy} UIYlIm SYsl Jo aouediiubls
pue 3|eas ay} asealoul A|gejiAsUl ||IM PaSSaIpPe JoU JI SaNSS| 8say | “SJeak aininy ul paasiyoe aq 0} ale siabie) souewlouad paalbe pue asuewlopad
[EIOUBUL UY1OQ JI SEaJe Uleuad ul Juswaroidwl Juediubis aiinbal 8oUBUISAOS) pue meT pue SaljijioeH pue yH ‘S82IAI8S JawWolsn) Jo Juswabeue)y

M3IAIBAQ d)el0}dallg

J1VH0L103dId SIDIANYIS FLVHOdHOD ANV LNIINdOT3A3A TVNOILVSINYOHO



Inq Jeak ay} ybnouyy Ajsjesspow uasl sey siy| %G| Jo JebJe} e 0} patedwod 9, | | sem aouewlopad Jeak Jo pug :sygep JoalIp Uo siojgaep jo abejusdlad

Ly

JO souewWJopad |[eJaA0 ul Bunsal ‘G Jo 1861 SU1 MO|aq JO PeO| 8SED B peY aABY SIS21440 Z INg |V 2w} uaAb Aue e Jojebiisaaul Jad saseo Jo JaquinN
‘ABjop awiy 8|geuosealun 0} anp { JSUEND) Ul PasO[d Uaq aABY SSSED UojoueS

[enualod Q| INg ‘paAalyoe usag aAeY suonoues |9 '(jelol Ul g9) Joyebnsaaul Jad £z 1e 189S sem Jeak Ul S9Sed UOIJOUBS [NJSS820NS JO Jaquinu ay |

‘Ge'G Jo 19b6.e) B 0} pasedwoo g8y sem aouewlopad Jeak jo pug ;peojesed 000 | Jod suoioues pue suonnoasold Jo JaquinN - Ainoes Jeuag Buisnoy

‘payoeal Buiaq wouy Jobiey
ay} pajuanald sey Jeah sy} ul Jsijles souewIopad Joamo| InNg ‘BWl} }SJly 8y} 10} %06 JOAO pansIyoe Sealy 82IAISS ||e pue ‘}abie} Buinaiyoe Jo JoYS S80I0AUI
0l ¥snl sem €10z yotey Buunp aouewlopad "% /6 J0 196.e} e 0} paiedwod %ce 6 sem aouewlopuad Jeak Jo pug :owi uo pred sa910AUI Jo abejusdlad

aoueul4

‘wes} sjual sy} Jo

SLIOYD PaJeJUadU0D Y} 0} aNnp JEG6Z3F Aq Bulonpal siealle YIm ZL0z Joquuadag 2ouls aouewlouad ul jJuswasoidwi jJueoliubis usaq sey alay| (46223
JO 8sealoul ue) z|0z Jaqwada inoybnoly g aseyd je puooas ay} pue ‘33 JO 9sealoul ue) uonejuawaiduwl Jo | aseyd e ZL0z Ainr ul 3saiy 8y}
:Jeah ay) Buunp pain220 siealle ul sesealoul Juedliubis om] "¢€1/Z10z 104 s}ebue) Buiias usym Junodde ojul usye) jusem jeyl Jojid sjuswAied 1991
8y} 0} 8|geINquyIe SI SIealle Jual Ul 9Sealoul 8y %09 /6 J0 1eb.e} e 0} patedwod 9%,£8 96 sem aouewopad Jeak Jo pug :pajos||0o jual jo abejusalad

"%CS L6 O} Ussl pey
€10¢Z YyoJepy ul suewopad Ajyiuopy "9,56 1o 196} sy} Jo Hoys s|e} Siyl ybnouye ‘o,¢/ /8 01 pasealoul sey aouewlopuad pus Jeak ay) ynsal e se pue
2102 429030 2ouls Buinoidwi Ajipea}s usaq aJjua)) Jo0BJUOY SY} Ul 9OUBWIOMS SaUl| 92IAISS UIB)\ S|1ouno) uo awi 3siiy ybnouyy Buiisb siswoysn)

Y1/£10¢2 0 g Jauenp Ag 18s aney am sainseaw aoueuwopad Buibuajieyo ay} j@aw 0} }oadxa pjnom

8M Uons sy ‘obe)s jo)1d aAl B ul SI wie|Ds pue Alenuer Jo pua auj Je aAl| Juam AGyY (WiejDa) wlioj wied J1uU0Jjodi8 ue pue (Agy) Uojediliaa paseqg
Sy aJe JuswaAolduwl SIy} SALIP 0] S|00) UleW OM] 8y ‘pajoadxa aAey pinom am aiaym o0} paaoldull Jou sey asuewlopad jey) sueaw yoiym ABojouyos)
MaU ay) wawadwi o} pajedionue uey) Jabuoj usye} sey j| “suonnjos |ea1bojouyoa) Jo Jaquinu e Jo uoljejuswajdwi syl uo paseq sjuawanoidwi ssaooud
JO JBQWINU B PapUsW O8] MBIASY S2IAISS [ejuswepun spyauag ay] “sAep 7| Jo j1ob.e) e 0} paledwoo shep G9 9z Sem aouew.opad ‘swield Jysusq
Mmau Jo Buissaosoud ay} 104 "shep (| Jo 1ob.e) e 0} paledwod sAep | Sem saouejswnolIo ul sabueyd ssa200.d 0} awiy 8y} Joy aduewlopuad Jeak Jo pug

"©10z Iudy Jo pud a8y} Aq payoeas aq pinoys 1able} ay] 1ouno) ay) Aq panaiyoe asouewlouad Uoijos||09 1saq sy} sjuasaidal
1S pue (pajoadxa wns ay} Jo Woys 000‘/.G3 isnl oy Buenba ‘o, |0 /6) passiw Aimolleu sem 9,0 /6 40 1abie) ay | :pa1oal|od xe| [19uno) jo abejuadiad

‘aouewJopad anoidwi 0} Bale SIy) OJul PSAOW 8] ||IM S82IN0Sal [euoilippe €10 [Idy wouly 10aye Buiye) sebueyo uoijusial sajey ssauisng ay} Yim
pue Jnsal jeul Bunuioddesip e sem siy] "% 86 40 Joble) e 0} paledwod o,19° /6 Sem aouewIopad Jeak Jo pug :pajos|0) Sajey ssauisng Jo abejuadiad

S921A19G J8W0)SNH

suo3dadx3 - 90UBWIONAd 9)el0}daliq
‘papioAe aq 0} Bulob aie spuadsiano Jejiwis

15



SaljI|I0B4 pUe S82JN0S3Yy UBWNH

‘JJe1s Aay Jo uonualel pue juawiinioal ay} o) bunjejas ¥si Bululjosp auo s aiay |

aoueuly

"$y{sll 858y} uo uonisod ay} anoidwi pue sjebijiw 0} IO PaLIED USQ SBY YIOM JUSIDIYNS Se Japenb siy} ul paso|o uas( ||e aAey sjueus)
10} U0I}08)|00 SWODUI [BlUSI paonpal pue awwelfold Jsil JoWoisno 1oy snooy a)elodiod (sBulaes jeloueuly Jaaljap o} A)jigqeul o} Buiejal sysu 891y |

S3JIAI9G J3WO)SN)

“JUsWaA0IdWI U JO JUSWSAOW OU JBY}IS MOYS Sy Sl ||e se ‘eale SsIy} Ul Jodal 0} suoidooxa ON

ABojouydsa] pue Juawanoidw| ssauisng

SUOI}dadX] -9dueWLIONDd YSIY

‘¥1/£102Z ul 9210y2 Jo Jakojdwa ue se |1ouno) ay} jo ajyoid sy} Buisies uo Buisndoy aq ||Im SN “SIS1LIEQ SO0} SUWOIISA0 0}
sdajs aye} [|IMm am udy} pue AJID 8y} Ul SSIIUNWIWOD SNOLIBA WOJ) 8q Aew alay} JuswAojdwa 0} sialleq Jeym puelsiapun o} pauueld si JJopp “Apuesyiubis
an0Jdwi 0} pasu am a1aym eale ue S SIYy] %6 40 19b1e} e 0} paiedwod 9,/ G Sem aoueIopad :saakojduia Ajuoulus d1Lws pue ¥oe|q Jo abejusdlad

¥1/€10Z Ul uonesauab awooul uo anoiduwil 0} sS8001d sajes e Buippaquwa jo sabe)s
AlJea ayy ul sl @01AJ8S 8y "000°0.93 Jo 1eb6.e) e 0} paledwod 9| ‘ZeGF sem aouewiouad Jeak jo pug :suonelado WNasnjy pue ||[eH UMO | WOl) SUOOU|

Sal}I|19B4 puB S32IN0S3Y UBWINKH

11I9UN0 ) 3y} AQ UOIoE SIy} MOje
0} PaJoBUS U23a(Q JoU Sey ‘@2uayo [eulwld e Apadoid Buisnoy [e1oos e Builis|gns ay} axew pjnom yoiym 10y pnelq BuisnoH [e120g Jo uoiuanald ay |
"Jeak ay} 1o} g jo 19bue) e 0} pasedwod pauinial alom sbulemp oN :sbuipaasold [euiwiid pue [IA19 ybnoly} sbuljjamp paumo [1Iounoy) pauinial Jo J8quiny

‘alniny ay} Joj ubis aajisod e si yoiym ‘1abue) siy) papasdxa sey Jeak ay) Jo SYjuow 4 1se| ay} 1o}

aouewlopad Alyjuow ‘9,Gg Jo 196Je} |enuue ay} passiw AiMmolieu ‘o, 1Q Jo souewlopad Jeah Jo pus ybnoyly :pajiews sadlApe aouepiwal Jo abejuadiad
‘Syuow z| 1ske| ay} Jano buisealoap Ajipesys saluediajunod

INo ||e wouy Sajel }SaJajul 0} anp 3jel 9Seq SA0Qe 9,60 JO Job.e} sy} Japun Si Siy] "d)el 9Seq aA0ge %S0 Sem Jeak ay} 1o} ynsal JInQ ‘Buunjew

(piaIA Jamoy e Aed jey}) saljuoyiny 207 YIM S)ISodap Uno JO [BISASS 0} 8NP €102 YIJEW Ul paAcidll 8oUBWIONSd ).l 8SEq SA0e UIN}a) JUSW}SaAU|

196.Je) 8y} 0] 9S00 8WOD Jou sey souewlopad ‘s1awo)snod Bunsixa pue mau 0} siy) ysnd o1 suoys sudssp



JUSLUISAOLW OU MOYS SYSlI ||e Se ‘Bale siy} Ul Jodal 0} suondaoxa oN

92UBUJIIAOL) puE MET

"WaApe 18J1} uo sjsod Aay
0] }IN123J 0} AJljIgeur ay} 03 anp ‘s|is b sy} yum wes) padinosal Ajaajoays ue buidojeasp pue Buluiejuiew ayj 0} buijejas ysi Buiuijosp auo si alay |

17



(%¥) 1 (%88)2Z (%82 (%0) 0 lejol (%sS) L1 (%6e) 2L  (%9) 2 (%0) 0 |ejol pueln
(%001) v IECAONY (%0) 0 Buisnoy (%21) | CADEM (%0) 0 BuisnoH

%26) LI INCAIN (%0) 0 Apedoud sjeiodio %065) |1 INCAIN! (%0) 0 Auedoud sjeiodio)n

%8/.) L %LL) L (%0) 0 Juswdojanag Ao | (%0) 0 HCAY (%0) 0 Juswdojanag Ao

abueyo abueys
ON CITVTEETal eleq ON ELITVETS ON CIVVIEETGN eleq ON ELITVETS

|[oAR4] JO uoI}daIIq |[9Ae4] JO uondalIq
! |
(%02) 9 HCAAEM (%0)0 Janenpd snolnsld (%S1) S CADEA (%) L Jopenp snoinald

(%05)ZL (%ee)8 (%Z)¥v  (%0)0 lejol (%e) ¥z (%000 (%819  (%6) € lejoL
(%52) 1 INCA  (%0) 0 BuisnoH (%000 MCAMNEMN (%0)0 BuisnoH
(%ee) v MCAMEA  (%0) 0 Auedoig ejeiodio) (%0) 0 BCANMEMN (%) € Auadold sjesodi
(%8¢) ¢ AN (%0) 0 Juawdojaraqg A0 (%0) 0 CALEA (%0) 0 Juawdojanaq AN

Arewwng ysiy Alewwng asuewuoyiad
000'L¥3  fUSWBAON 000'G83  UBWENOW 000'8EL-3  UBWBAON
000°L8E'V-3 10 Aeld 00080923 10 Aeld 000°GGL‘13 1D A8Id
000'8/G-3  :®dUELEA 000'692-3  :90uelep 000'9L13  :e0uelEeA
000°0vE v-3 :1sedalo4 000°€69°C3 ‘Isedalo 000°L19°13 -sedalo4
000°29L°¢-3 :196png 000296°C3 ‘1ebpng 000° LYY L3 19Bpng

Auadoud a@1elodio) BuisnoH wawdojanaqg Al

aouew.ollad |eloueul
€1/210Z ¥O uonesauabay A1 -Hoday pajesbaju

g xipuaddy



Jouiw asay} Jo %8| Ajuo aulwialap 0) a|qissod sem 1l Jnsal e Sy "1eak Syl pi 0] Jeak 1Se| G| Wwol) 8s0l (Sul-||ed) saapiwwod Buiuued eale ay)
Aq paulwalap aq 0} pajsenbal suoneoldde Jouiw Jo Jaquinu sy} asnedaq Ajjediound si Jeak siyy souewlopad ul doip ay] %09 sem 1eble] [euoneN
P|0 8y | “Juswanalyoe poob e ||i1s s Ing ‘%G, 4o 18bue) e 0} paledwoo 9,7z, sem aouewiouad Jeak Jo pug :suoneoidde Buiuueld Jouiw Jo Buissaoold

‘20e|d aye)} Asy) yjuow a8y} ul paplodal Ajjewloy jou ale

suona|dwod sawos Agasaym Be| sawi e aq os|e Aew a4y "UOI}ONIISUOD Japun Ajjuaiino says Buisnoy abie| Jo 8ouasge sy} pue Uoljenyis [euoljeu ay}
Bunos|jes ‘ysibbn|s uaaq sey pioyxQ ul Buiping asnoH "0¢z Jo 196.e] e 0] pasedwod g] Sem aouewiopad Jeak Jo pug :papiroid sawoy |euonippe 18N
juawdojanaqg Ayo

suondadx3 - souewIOad 9jelojdalig

“Jeak yoea Ajloyine ay) Joj pajelauab si awooul Jo snid WQ3F 1ey) Japlo ul papasu S SJ8sse asay) Wolj pajesausb awooul
3} JO MBIABI PaNUNUOD jey} pajdadoe s il ‘JanamoH Buolls aq 0} anunuod 01joj1od [BI2JaWWOD S JIOUN0Y BY) WO} S[9AS] SWO0DUI Judl [euonippe ay |
Aadouyd ajesodion

‘pJemio} Buinow uisouod Jolew e si pue 821AI8S BuisnoH Jno uo ainssaud Bund s1 sssusssipwoy
UO SWL.IOJaJ dJejlom Jo Joedwi ay] “Jeak ay) ul sBuines awos pajeald (paj|ly USag MOU |[B 9ABY UDIYyM) SSIOUBIBA JE)S Ylim pajeloosse sbuines
BuisnoH

"aWooUl 921Ape Buluueld-aid JO uolENUIIUOD B [IM SB $1/€10Z

Ul paAi@dal aq [|Im sWodUl 884 Buluue|d aJow pue Buiwiy yim op 0} alow SI anssl s8a4 buiuue|d ay} paAslaq Si )| “S|oAs| swodul buijelsusb jo
sAem aAljeAOUUI BI0W SE |[9M SB 1IN Y} UIyim papasu ag Aew suiaouod asay} buios|jes sjuswysnipe-ay "anaiyoe o} ynaiyip 0o} buinoud ale Asy)
S}BWI|D 2IWOU0D3 Jualind 8y} uaAIb se piemuo} Buinow oiews|qold g [Im 33} [0juo) Buip|ing Jo |9As] payebpng ay) Buipiebal suiedouod) ~awodul
994 Buiuue|d pue jouo) Buipiing pajebpng o JusWwaAaIyde-uoU 8y} 0} anp puadsiano pus-leak 1au e pasualiadxa eale a2IAI8s 3y} €1/Z10z bulng
juawdojanaqg Ayo

aJueWIoa |elduelUl] ajelo}dallg

19

‘Juswdoeas AN Jo seale ulepad ul 9duewlopad 82IAI8S pue |elouBUl Yjog uo jJoedw! SWos sAey

Aew sIy} pue sulewal seale ulepad ul ysiy “1apenb snolaaid sy} 0} paledwod g 0} g Wody paonpad sey joblue) Jo sainseaw Jo Jaquinu ay] “Japenb snoianald
9y} Jo pus 8y} paiedwod  Japenp Jo pud au} je jobue) Buipaaoxae 1o Bujesw sainsesw JO 9%¢/ Je paulejulew usaqg sey siy} se aouewiopuad pajoaye
Aluessasau Jusey SIy] UlBWal S|9A3| dWOdUl YIMm pajeldosse Ajjeinadsa ‘sulaouod Jobpng awos jng poob A1aa usaq sey asuewlopad [eloueuly ||elanQ

MB3IAIDAQ 3}el0}23lI(q

31Vd0123d1d NOILVHIANIO3™ ALID



JUSWSAOW pJEMIO) MOYS 0} S8nuijuod }osloid ayj jey) ajealpul
eale sIy} uo sjuawdojanap juaoal JanamoH 1oafoud Juswdoanapal ajebsa ) 8y 0} Uolje[al Ul BSJE 92IAISS SIY} UIYIM XSIi paJ Buluiewsal auo si alay |
Aadoud ajeirodion

“JUBLUBAOW OU MOYS SYSLI ||e Se ‘eale SIy} ul Jodas 0} suoipdaoxa oN
BuisnoH

"Jolew aq pjnom aJnjie} yans Jo }oedwl sy} usyeuspun

Buiaq |ns aie suonoe bunebiniw 1sjiym pue Buissasoid 1oy SwalsAs | D] UO aduelal 8y} 0} anp ainjie) swalsAs Jolew oy Bunejas eale siyy ul buluiewsal
YSII pal auo |is sl alay] Juswabeuew }o9loid Jood 03 anp sAejap j0aloid 0} Bunejas ¥sii Jaquue ue Se sulewal [|1I3S YoIym 3si Buiuoap auo sl aiay |
juawdojanaqg Auo

suoI}dadx3 -aouew.oliad 3siy

108loud 8y 01 pablieyo awiy ybnoayy saa} jo Buidnoosal ayy ybnolay; peaye auob As|mo ) ul 004
MBN 8U} pey paAaiyoe usaq aney pinom jablel siy] "'600°'S0¥3 Jo 10bue} e 0} patedwod zEg 61 £F alom panaiyoe sbuines [enjoy :sbuines jobpng ansiyoy

"Y1/ 0Z 0} paJlajop uaag Sey SIy} SMaIASJ Judl 1ayiew
BuioBuo ayj} jJo M3IA i pue ‘€ /Z1L0Z 404 INO palled usaq sey ASAINS UOIJOB)SIIES ON :S92IAISS PJO|pUB| YIM Paljsljes Ssjueus) jaxlew jo abejuadiad
fAadoud ajelsodion

N0 sjybiu puodas 01az Jo 196.e) ay) Buissiw ‘19a4)s 8y} uo ybiu puodas e Buipuads
Jadaals ybnos mau | paiuapl €10z Ateniga4 ul Junod Jadas|s ybnou v :sjaalys ay} uo ybiu puooas e Bulpuads siadas|g ybnoy mau Jo JaquinN

“Jayyeboy nd Buieq si ueid ssauisng e pue ‘||gelns Se pasSaSSe Usaq 9duls Sey }onpold puodss y “Spasu 0} pajnsun
27 0} puNO} UBY} SEM UoIyMm }onpold SIemlos MauU B JO 9Sedjal d)e| 3y} 0} anp pake|ap uaaq sey ssalboud :suoneondde Buisnoy aul-uo jo juswdoaaq
Buisnoy

‘S)y9aM Q By} uIyim suonedndde

20



(%¥1L)s  (%l8)oc  (%E) L (%€) 1 |ejol
(%S2) 6 NN (%0) 0 Syleq pue aInsioT

- (%68) 8 BRCANNN (%1L1) 1L JuswdojeAa(] [e}USWIUOIIAUT

| (%62) |1 ICAVNY (%0) 0 S90IAI9S 1091l

| (%001) Z INCAV) (%0) 0 Juswdojeraq Ajunwiwion

abueyo
ON Bujuioag

ejeq oN ELITNETS

|[oAeI] JO uondallqg

EABDEM  (%0) 0 (%0) 0

Japenp snoinaid

ejeq oN

(%¢g8) 12

(%09) 21
%62) T

(%S¢€) ¥1

%08) ¢

abueys
ON

(%EL) S

%9G) S ICA4AN4

(%eL)s  (%0)0

[ejo] pueis

(AN  (%0) 0

Syled pue ainsie

(%0) 0 (%0) 0

JuswdojaAs(] [BIUSWIUOIIAUT

(%0) 0

S82IAI8S 108.IQ

(%0) 0 (%0) 0

FUNTEETaM ejeq ON

|[oAeRI] JO uonodaliqg

wswdojersg Alunwiwo)

CLITVETS

(%S) 2 (%0) 0

Jayenp snoirald

(%2¥) S1 (%0S) 9L  (%0) 0 (%¢€) L lejol
(%0) 0 (%0) 0 s)ied pue ainsie
%£9) S IMCAVNN (%EL) L Juswdojars( |EJUBWIUOIIAUT

S90IAIBS 108110
wawdojeaag Alunwwon

(%5S) 9

(
| (%9¢) ¥ ICAVIN  (%0) 0
| (%05) | INCAVNN (%0) 0

P3y ejeq oN ERITVETS

Aewwing ysiy
000°C-3 JUBWBAON
000°£95°€3 D AdUd
000°681-3 :90uUBLEA
000'G95°'c3  1seoalod
0004S2'€3  19bBpng

(%88) g€  (%0) 0
| (%0)0 |
| (%000 |
| (%0)0 |
| (%S2)€ | (%0)0 |
000'2S-3 JUSWIDAO
000°0€9°L-3 D AdId
000'8+9-3 :90UBLIBA
000'289'L-3  :1sedalo4
000'v€0°L-3 :196png

(%elL)s  (%0)0

ejoL

%SL) ¢ G

s)led pue ainsieT

Juswdojaas( |BJUSWIUOIIAUT

(%0) 0 (%0) 0

$90IAI9G 1081Ig

(
SO  (%0) 0
(

(%0) 0

%S2) |

pay

wswdojersg Auunwwon

90IAI]

Alewwng asuewuoyiad

000°'GH-3 :JUBWAAO
000291 ‘€3 D AdUd
000'7L3 :e0oueleA
000°LLL'€E3  :1sedalod
000°€0L ‘€3 :19bpng

000963 BUETIEYNGITY
000°L62°13 D AdUd
000'96-3 :eoueleA
000'€6E'L3  ‘Isedslod
000°681°L3 :196png

juswdojeaeq Aunwiwion

$80IAI9S 108110

2ouewloyiad |eloueul
€1/Z10Z $O S921A19S AJlunwiwo’) -Joday pajeibajul

3 xipuaddy

syled pue ainsieT

juswdojanaq
|eluswuoIIAUg



e 01 A|geinone} paiedwod |ns SIY} ‘ISASMOH "6£3 Jo 1ebie) e 01 paledwod |3 sem ainbly Jeak Jo pus ay| :pjoyasnoy Jad syed Jo 1S02 sy} 9onpay
"snje}s uaalb umoy Joy uonjesldde ue Ag dn pjay usaq sey |ood ay} uo ssalbold :sAa7 paigyoe|g e |[00d Mau Sy} UO HJOM SoUBWWOD)

s)yled pue ainsia’

suondedx3g - souBWIOlIad 9jelojdalig

‘Jeys Jo Juswe|dwod ||ny B SeY MOU 821AI8S 8y "wes)} | DYNVYD
2y} 0} A||e1oadsa ‘Yels Jo Juswiyinioal ay} Yyum pajeroosse sbuines Alejes 0} paje|al asay} pue Alea payiuapl AJeiuwis alam weggl 03 0 spuadsiapun

we?d ) juawdojaaaq Ajlunwwon

"S]OBJIUOD |BUIBIXS UIm pue piq o} AJijige ay} Ajle1oadsa ‘piemioy
Buinow urewsa. sabuajjeyo nq Jeak |eloueul sy} Bunnp AjJes pajoslolid sem eale 921AI8S Sy} 10} sNjdiNs Wgy9 0F JO uonisod UINPNo 8y “S|9Ad
uonnguuod pajosfold Buuoyuow Ul se2INosal Jueoliubls aiinbal seop Jun ssauisng sIy} ulyim papiroid saoiales jo abuel pue anjea ‘Alixajdwoo ay |

S921AI9G J0a11Qg

"WGL0°03 4O Jeak ay) Joj puadsiano jau Jybis e ul Buinsal ‘92IAIas 8y} UIyiIm Seale I1ayjo
Ul S|2A8] 8w0dul pasealdul AQ 189S0 alam Aay} Inqg Jeah sy} bulinp pasiieal aiam s}sod Ajjiin Juswabeuew aInsIg| Y)im pajeldosse spuadsiano jobpng

s)yied pue ainsia
‘poob sI eale 82IAIaS SIY} J0) ouewIopad [eloueul Ajjelausb ing pua-1eak 1e paiinooo seakojdwa uo W90 03 Jo puadsiapun ybis v

juswdo|aAa(Q |BJUSWUOIIAUT

9JUBWIIOI9 |eIDUBUI] 9jel0}dalig

22

b

‘Buibuajeyo ulrewal splemuo 1/$ 10z Ul S|oAg] Aueabpng uiyum ayesado o3 Ajjige sy} pue 9)e.io}oali] SY} SSOIOB S3IJIAIIOR JO SINJBU SSISAIP SY} SE PaMSIAS
Apeinbal ale Ja)sibal ysi S,81e1010aJ1Q Y} UIYIM Paljiluapl Sy Sl eale 921AI8s alniny jey) Jueuodwi si ) “Aiobajed pal sy ul Buluiewal mou sl 921AI8S SUo
Ajuo yum Jeak jeroueuly sy} inoybnouyy poob Alan paulewss sey ajelo}oaliq syl Yim pajeldosse Juswabeuew s ay) pue Buliojuow [eroueul) Yiog |[BJeAQ
"Jauenb snoinaid ay) 0} paledwod 7 0} 9 WoJy paonpal Joble) Jo sainseaw Jo Jaqwinu ay] “Japenb snoinaid ay} Jo pus ay} 1e %,GQ 0} paledwod {7 JIaueny)

JO pus ay} je }oble} Buipaaoxa Jo Buldaw Mou SaINSesWw JO %88 Yim paroidwi sey souewlopad Ajjessushb pies jey] “sjoble} uoioesijes Jnoineyaq [e1o0s

-juy 198w 0} Ajljige ay} Ajjeroadse ‘eouewlopad uo pajoedwi sey siy} wes) Juswdopasg Ajunwwo sy} uiyim Ajjeroadss pasijeas usaq aney sbuines 1s|IUpn

M3IAIBAQ 9)el0}234Iqg

VIO L3110 S321AY3S ALINNIWNOD



"JUSLISAOL OU MOYS SYSL ||B Se ‘Bale siy} ul Jodal 0} suoidaoxa oN

juswdojaAa( [ejusWUOIIAUT

"92IAISS B} 0} JueAd|al Jabuo| ou ale SYSlI oM}
asay] ‘aseasIp }oegalp Ysy Jo joedwi sy} pue J0}oeqjuod ainsia] ay) Aq siablel N4/ Jo AleAidp 0} Bunjejal Japenb siy) paso|o usaq aney SH S OM |

s)yled pue ainsia’

"9OIAISS JUSIOIYD
ue jJo AJaAljap 0} uone|al Ul i SIY} ‘¥SLl USalS) B 0} ¥Sl Jaquly ue wolj Buinow auo pue Buibueys sysil @aiy) yum ‘uonjisod Buinoidwi [[esano ue Buimoys

S321A13G 10211Q

suondadx3 -aouewiojiad ysiy

"Jeak Ixau panoiduwl a4 ||Im S8109s uoljoelsijes ayj ‘Aaljod pue ueld gSy Mau Jno ojul suolysabbns Jisyy Buiyesodiooul

Ag 1ey) adoy pue ‘gSy yim [esp am Aem sy} punoJe sjsijjsued 3oegy|e] YIm 3JOM Uuoie}nsuod Jayuny Buiop usaqg saey am ‘Jesh siy} 1w jou sem joble)
a2y} ybnoyyy ‘Aanins yoegye |enuue ue ul uolsanb e Jo synsal sy} buisn painseaw si J0Je2IpUIl SIY ] %GS o 10bJe} sy} yim patedwod uonjoeisies
%9°9p Sem aouew.opad Jeak Jo pu3 :2910d pue [1I2unod [e20] 8y} Ag awd pue (gSY) JNOIABYSQ [BID0S-JUB JNOGe SUISJU0D [E20] YIm Buleaq

wed ] juawdojaaaqg Ajunwwon

‘Y1L/S10Z 10} 10w aq |im 12buey siy| “Buiuiesy pajnpayos ay) a|iyoid-al 0} paau ay} 0} anp (sAep
L1°€) passiw Aimouleu sem shep g ¢ Jo aakojdwa Jad sAep juswdojaasp Joj 1abie) ay] :sanjenba pue sjdoad 0} yoeoidde ino anoidwi Aisnonuiuo))

‘ployasnoy Jad 193 Jo 1500 abelaAe yiewyouaq [euoijeu

23



(%00L) € (%0) 0 (%0) 0

1ejol
suoledIuNWWoD

pue ainny Aoljod

(%001) ¢ IRCAONM (%0) 0

om:m:o
CUNTTEETaN eleq ON

|[oAeI] JO uondallqg

CLITNEYS

(%000

(%08) €

Japenp snoinaid

(%ev) s (%8S) L  (%0)0 (%0) 0

[ejo puelo
suonediunwwo)

pue ainyn) Aoljod

(%8S) ., U (%0)0

mm:m:o
FUNTEETaM ejeq ON

|[oAel ._. Jo uonoallg

CLITVETS

(%8) | AT

Jayenp snoirald

(%0) 0  (%o001) € (%0) 0

(%001) €

|ejol
suone2IUNWWOYD

(%0) 0

(%0) 0 (%0) 0 pue ainyng Aoljod
Arewwng ysiy

(%z6)ZL  (%0) 0 (%8) 1

(%0) 0

ejoL

suojedIuNWILIOGy
pue ainjn) AoIjaRy

(%0) 0

(%8) 1

Alewwng asuewuoyiad

(%0) 0

pay CLITVEYS

000'7LL3  :lUSWSAON
000'G12'13 D A8ld
000'7LL-3 :@0uBLIBA
000'62€'L3  ‘isedslod
000°€tv'L3 :196png

sSuonedIUNWWOD
pue ainyn9d ‘Aoijod

aouewW.IOMad |eloueuly

€1/2102 YO seAin2ax3 jaiy) -poday pajesbajul

4 Xipuaddy




“Japenb siy} ul sysi 8y} 0} sebueyo ou usaq aAeY a8y} se Jodal 0} suoidaoxe ou aJam aiay |

suoledIUNWWOY pue ainyng ‘Ao1jod

suondadx3 -aduewlojiad jsiy ¢

‘Papaa0Xa J0 JoW a1aMm sjable) e se suoidaoxe ou aiam alay |

suone2IuUNWWO ) pue ainyny ‘Aa1jod

N 25

suondadxy - souBWIOISd @jelo}dalig

‘196pNnQ Juswulepe |euoiedNPa 8y} UIYyIM ainypuadxe
paonpal Jo }nsaJ e se si siy| '19bpnq }saje| paroidde ay} ueyy JOmo| Wi | |03 SEM YoIym ‘Wezs L3 40 uonisod uinyno pajoslold e pey ajelooalip ay |

suoledIuUNWWOo) pue ainyng ‘Aoa1jod

9JUBLLIOJIad [eldueul] ajelo}dalig ‘I

‘pJemuo} Buinow papaau si sjable)
aouew.lopad 0} payewles sl yaiym uoisianoid 1@6png awos jo Buluueld Japaqg ybnoyye poob sem aouewiopuad |eiauab |jetano yons sy “Jeak ay) buunp
palijuap! a1am Jajsibal ¥sIl 92IAI8S U} JO Juswabeuew ay} 0} SUJaoU0d Jolew OpN “Japenb snoiaald ay) Jo pus ay} Je 9%,98 0} paledwo? {7 Jaueny) Jo pus

ay} Je 19b.e) Buipasoxa Jo Bujeaw sainsesw JO %00 L Yim parcidwi yoiym aouewlopad eale 821AI8s sem se poob Ajjessusb sem aouew.opad [eioueul

M3IAIBAQ 9)el0}23l1Qg

J1vd0103d1d S3AILNJ3IX3 43IHD



APPENDIX G

Draft Finance Monitoring as at 315 March 2013 (Quarter 4)

Appendix 1: March 2013 monitoring — General Fund Draft Outturn

Appendix 2: March 2013 monitoring — Capital Programme Draft Outturn
Appendix 3: March 2013 monitoring — Housing Revenue Account Draft Outturn
Appendix 4: March 2013 monitoring — Carried Forward List

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.

This report sets out the Council’s draft final outturn position as at the 31st March 2013
and highlights major variances to the approved latest budget. In summary

e As Appendix 1 demonstrates the General Fund Revenue account outturn position
was as per the latest budget. This was achieved through a variety of transfers to
earmarked reserves during the last quarter utilising resources previously identified
from unused budgeted contingency provision (detailed later in this report). The
services element of the General Fund only showed a movement from the outturn
position predicted at Q3 of £0.257million.

e Appendix 2 details the draft capital outturn position which shows a surplus variance
against the latest budget of £0.739million as at the end of the financial year. There
have been several reductions to the capital programme during the year, notably the
new competition swimming pool project that accounts for most of the slippage.

e Appendix 3 indicates that the HRA’s draft outturn position for 2012/13 was a deficit
of £1.321m for the year. The outturn for the year was in fact a surplus of £1.080m;
approximately £2.402m more than budgeted due to less funding needed for the HRA
capital programme and increased income from both dwelling and non-dwelling rents.
£7m has been transferred to the Major Repairs Reserve to either fund the increased
HRA capital programme from 2013/14 onwards or have the option to repay debt.

e The collection rate for Council Tax arrears was 97.01%, up on March 2012’s position
of 96.80%.

e Business Rate collection at the end of March 2013 was 98.88% compared to
97.75% for 2011/12.

e The payment of invoices within 30 days has improved slightly since Q3'’s position of
94.33%. However, this is still below the 2012/13 target of 97%.

o HRA total arrears were £1.348million as at the end of March. This represents a
significant improvement on Q3 when they stood at £1.595million, a reduction of over
15% for the quarter.

. As part of the monitoring process Finance staff have met and had budget monitoring

discussions with Cost Centre Managers and Heads of Service to verify the current
budgetary position.

The main projected General Fund outturn variances compared to the latest budget are
shown below:

. Chief Executive’s Directorate — A favourable variance of £0.114million was realised at

year-end due to additional slippages of spend within Policy, Culture and
Communication.

City Regeneration Directorate — A favourable outturn variance of approximately
£0.670million, which was only £0.007million different from that reported at Q3. The main

Page 126



reason for the variance is the additional rent generated from the Council’s commercial

property portfolio.

6. Community Services Directorate — A £0.918 million favourable variance, which was
again only slightly different, £0.002 million, from that reported at Q3. This has principally
been caused by the predicted additional contributions generated by Direct Services from
their range of service activities during the year.

7. Organisational Development and Corporate Services Directorate — As at the end of
March the Directorate is projecting a £0.462million adverse variance, an increase of
£0.362million than that reported at Q3. This has been caused from Emergency Planning
flood works having to be absorbed by the Council and reduced Town Hall income.

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN

8. Appendix 1 provides a General Fund revenue outturn position, broken down by Service
Area. Table 1 below also details the summarised GF position as at the end of March
2013 and compares the position to that reported in Quarter 3.

Table 1 General Fund Revenue

GF Outturn Report 12/13

Approved Budget
(per Budget
book)

Latest Budget

Actual YTD

% Budget Spent
to 31st Mar 2013

Outturn Variance
Q4

Outturn Variance
Q3

Outturn Variance
Movement from
Q3to Q4

Directorates

£000's

£000's

£000's

£000's

Chief Executive

1,525

1,443

1,329

92%

114

City Regeneration

4,457

641

(30)

(5%)

(7)

Community Services

3,882

7,312

6,394

87%

(3)

Organisational Dev & Corp Services

12,180

12,962

13,423

104%

(362)

Directorate Total Excl SLA's & Capital Charges

22,044

22,357

21,117

94%

(1,241)

(257)

SLA's & Capital Charges

(1,274)

(1,276)

738

(58%)

2,013

(2,013)

Corporate Accounts

Contingencies

1,815

3,151

1,831

775

(849)

61

(36%)

8%

(2,680)

(714)

367,

3,047

714

Total Corporate Accounts & Contingencies

4,966

2,606

(788)

()

(3,394)

367

3,761

Net Expenditure Budget

25,736

23,688

21,066

(2,621)

(1,131)

1,490

Transfer to / (from) GF working balances
Transfer to / (from) Ear Marked Reserves

(1,622)

(1,622)
2,049

(1,622)
5,053

100%

3,005

(3,005)

Net Budget Requirement

24,113

24,114

24,497

383

(1,131)

(1,514)

Funding

External Funding
Council tax

Less Parish Precepts

11,719
12,587
(193)

11,719
12,587
(193)

12,028
12,661
(193)

103%
101%
100%

309
74

310

1
(74)

Total Funding Available

24,113

24,113

24,497

383

310|

(73)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year

(1,441)

(1,441)

9. As at the end of March the outturn position was as per the latest budget position. This
has been achieved by utilising unused contingency provision to specific earmarked
reserves, mainly £3.3million for a Westgate Re-Development Reserve to provide
temporary car parking at Westgate.

10.Chief Executive’s Directorate - The directorate is currently estimated to have a
projected outturn position of £1.329million, which is £0.114million lower than the

P2ge 2



11.

approved latest budget. This is as a result of reduced expenditure within the educational
attainment budget. This budget spend has subsequently been re-profiled in line with the
current agreed programme.

City Regeneration Directorate - The directorate is currently estimated to have a
projected outturn favourable position of £0.030million, which is £0.670million lower than
the approved latest budget but only £0.007million different to that reported at Q3. City
Development was £0.176million overspend is as a result of a decline in Building Control
Fees against budget and reduced Planning Fees. GF Housing services was
£0.269million underspend created by staff budget savings and Corporate Property was
£0.577million favourable at year-end caused by positive commercial property rent
reviews.

12.Community Services Directorate - The directorate is currently estimated to have a

projected outturn position of £6.394million, which is a favourable variance of
£0.918million against the latest budget and primarily relates to savings/additional
income associated with Direct Services. This outturn position is only £0.003m different
to that projected at Q3. Environmental Development was £0.096million underspent
caused by salary savings incurred towards the end of the financial year. Leisure & Parks
Services was £0.015million adverse caused by pressures on the leisure management
area due to utilities, and fleet and fuel pressures within parks slightly offset by additional
income from burial services and tree works. Direct Services was a net £0.648million
favourable largely caused by a surplus (£0.078million) from off-street car parking
primarily due to St Clements remaining open for an additional 11 months, additional
Engineering works won (£0.386million), Streetscene re-structure and employees not
being in the pension scheme (£0.418million), Building Services making a contribution
from Non-HRA Works (£0.044million), all of which were slightly offset by income targets
not being achieved within Motor Transport (£0.145million) and Commercial waste
(£0.135millio n). Lastly Community Development was £0.189million underspent at year-
end principally caused by staff savings due to vacancies that have now all been filled.

13.0rganisational Development and Corporate Services Directorate - The directorate

is estimated to have a projected outturn position of £13.423million, which is £0.462
million adverse to the latest budget. This is a £0.362million higher than that reported in
Q3. Business Imp & Tech was £0.32 million underspent as a result of lower spending on
the technology side of the business. Customer Services was £0.047 million adverse.
This was a mixture of additional council tax court cost income, and court fees budgets.
The Finance Service was £0.107million favourable caused by salary savings, over
provision of legal costs and reduced internal/external audit fees. HR & Facilities was
£0.277million overspent. The main pressures within the service were as a result of a
shortfall in Town Hall and post room income, as well as additional spending on Town
Hall and facilities supplies and services. These pressures were partly offset by savings
through vacant posts. Lastly, Law & Governance was £0.276million overspent resulting
from £0.161million of costs associated with Emergency Planning flood works that the
Council were unable to recover, together with salary overspends and a shortfall in Legal
Hub budgeted income are the main reasons for the adverse variance at year-end.

CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

14.With regard to SLA’s/Capital Charges and Corporate Accounts it is best to view these

two items together. The overspend on SLA’s/Capital Charges mainly relates to capital
charges where both depreciation charged for the year and deferred charges were
approximately £2million higher than budgeted, hence the adverse variance shown.
These costs for the GF, in accordance with current accounting rules, are however

Page 328



reversed out within the Corporate Accounts section so as not to hit the bottom line and
as such a cost to Council Taxpayers and this accounts for the majority of the favourable
variance for this line. The balance of the favourable outturn associated with Corporate
Accounts related to the Local Cost of Benefits.

15.With regard to Contingencies the Employee Inflation contingency of £0.624million was
not needed, together with unused amounts from the Pensions Provision Top Up
contingency, £0.200million and £0.841million from the unachieved savings reserve.
These resources coupled with the service area underspends of £1.241million shown
above were used to principally transfer resources to a year-end earmarked reserve of
£3.3million for Westgate Re-Development that had the result of bringing the outturn
position in line with the latest GF budget at year-end.

16.The Council has utilised £1.622m from existing working balances as originally
estimated.

17.The new earmarked reserves created at year-end were:

o £3.279million Westgate Re-Development Reserve to fund temporary car
parking facilities that will be required during the projected Westgate re-
development.

e £0.150million Emergency Flood Reserve to fund future flood works as and
when they arise.

18.Appendix 1 incorporates the transfers and budget adjustments associated with the
agreed £0.765million of GF service carry forward requests suggested by CMT. These
are as follows:

City Development £0.150m Unlawful Dwellings
Direct Services £0.150m Marsh Road Depot Improvements

Community Development £0.039m Ward Member Budget slippage
£0.010m BBL Work club
£0.106m Youth Ambition slippage
£0.032m Youth Ambition Grants
£0.050m Social Inclusion Fund

Customer Services £0.054m Unused DCLG grant for CT Benefit claimants

£0.037m Grant money for Welfare Reform
£0.033m Grant money for support to benefit claimants

HR and Facilities £0.083m Apprenticeships

Law and Governance £0.021m Archivist Project

ACHIEVEMENT OF SAVINGS AND EFFICIENCIES

19.The Council’s budget identifies £1.761million of efficiencies, £0.290million of service
reductions and £1.193million of additional fees and charges for 2012/13. As at the end
of March some efficiency targets weren’t delivered. However, both mitigating activities

and additional on-going fees and charges ensured that across all three areas
associated with “Efficiency” targets, these were 99% delivered.

P2ge 4



20.Table 2 below details the forecast outturn position relating to efficiencies, service

reductions and additional fees and charges at the end of March 2013.

Table 2 — Savings and Efficiencies as at 31st March 2013

Policy, Culture & Communications
Chief Executive

Finance

Business Improvement & Technology
Law & Governance

Human Resources & Facilities
Customer Senices

Organisational Development and
Corporate Services

Direct Senvices

Leisure & Parks
Environmental Development
Community Services

City Development
Housing and Communities
Corporate Property

City Regeneration

Mitigating Savings

Total

Efficiencies Service Reductions Fees and Charges
Savings Savings Savings
Asp:‘:;::/:: Variance | made to Ag::?::: Variance [ made to As|):vr:1v:: Variance [ made to
date date date
£000's  £000's _ £000's £000's  £000's £000's £000's  £000's £000's
A e S S T S S L_o_any 4 _ (@3)
i ! ! ! (17) 4 (13)
_ _@s)_ @5) )_ _ w2 ___ T ___@] ________[____
G| REL) S I A R SR IR A
(33)! (33) (83), + (83); (©) 5
(67)! 36 (31) L L | (30) 30
S 27 | S - S 20X )] S S NN TR S SN S S
(702), 82 (620) (125)! : (125) ! (35) 35
F:::C::C::: L _ _(836) _ _(17)] _ _ _(953)
(35)1 | (35) | (54) 2 (52)
SN ):) | S SN (°.5)) aoy _ _ | (10)
@33yl V@33l L (900) _ _(115)] _ _ (1,015)
), (5) (16)! [ 16) | (191) 36 (155)
_ Qe _i___ (92! \_ _ e _ _ _ T ___qe)] | [
(420)| 9 (329) T ! (50) r (50)
(617)] 91 (526) 32)] T 32) ! (241) 36 (205)
N S 74 NN  74) S A S S S S NN ) I 7
| _a7en) __na (ean) L _@eoy_ 7 @0 __ @93 _ @4 _(1.277)

HRA OUTTURN

21.The summarised HRA position as at 31st March 2013 is set out in Table 3 and detailed
on the attached Appendix 3.

Page 530



Table 3 — Housing Revenue Account HRA

Approved % Budget Outturn Outturn \Zl:lt::::
HRA Outturn Report 12/13 | Budget(per |Latest Budget| Actual YTD | Spentto 31st ey A i s
budget book) March 2013 from Q3to Q4
£'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 £'000 £'000
Dwelling Rent (36,508) (36,508) (37,140) 102% (632) 90 722
Service Charges (956) (956) (970) 101% (13) 13
Shops/Garages/Furn/Other Rent (2,208) (2,300) (2,433) 106% (133) 133
Rechargeable Fees/Other (721) (621) (187) 30% 434 (434)
Net Income (40,393) (40,386) (40,730) (345) 90 435
Rent/Income Collection 361 357 (866) -242% (1,222) (1,296) (74)
Tower Blocks and Flats 598 597 490 82% (108) 2 110
Management/Infrastructure 1,839 1,883 2,175 116% 292 (46) (338)
Depreciation 8,147 5,888 5,888 100% ()
ICT services 281 281 281 100% ()
Contact Centre 786 786 782 100% (4) 4
Rent Team 499 502 446 89% (56) 122 178
Tenant's Participation 208 250 226 91% (24) (42) (18)
Furnished Tenancies 473 543 487 90% (57) 57
Local Housing Management 835 837 875 105% 38 (4) (42)
Major Projects/Policy/Technical 626 626 531 85% (95) (2) 93
Bad Debt Provision 410 410 274 67% (136) 136
Site Preparation 201 200 134 67% (66) 66
Sub Total Tenancy Management 15,264 13,160 11,722 (1,438) (1,266) 172
Caretaking Service 941 941 941 100%
Garden Scheme 268 268 268 100%
Void Property officers/Garage team 248 248 248 100%
Day to Day Responsive 4,450 4,463 4,844 109% 382 (382)
Planned Maintenance 4,938 5,205 5,286 102% 81 400 319
Direct Services Capital Overheads 636 740 518 70% (222) 222
Sub Total Repairs & Maintenance 11,481 11,865 12,106 241 400 159
Total Expenditure 26,746 25,025 23,828 (1,197) (866) 331
Net Transfer To/From Reserves 7,000 6,862 7,506 109% 644 (780) (1,424)
Revenue Contribution to Capital 383 2,642 1,702 64% (940) (383) 557
Additional HRA Subsidy (2312) (2312) 231
Interest On Balances (35) (35) (64) 184% (29) (50) (21)
Interest Payable 8,055 7,100 6,895 97% (205) 205
CDC, Pensions & Retirement Costs 111 112 15 13% (97) 97
Total Appropriations 15,514 16,682 15,822 (860) (1,213) (353)
Total HRA (Surplus)/Deficit 1,867 1,321 (1,080) (2,402) (1,989) 413

Income

22.Dwelling rent income was higher than budgeted due to the lower number of Right To
Buy disposals. The HRA Business Plan estimated 78 RTB disposals representing a
uniform 10% reduction in housing stock over a 10 year period. This was in response to
the Government’s paper Re-Invigorating Right To Buy in which they increased the
available discounts up to a maximum of £0.075million. It was difficult to predict the
impact of this initiative and as such a prudent approach was adopted for revenue
purposes. Non-dwelling income from shops and garages was also up mainly due to
favourable rent reviews. Lower rechargeable fees to capital were incurred due to a

P3de 6



reduction in the non-Direct Services element of the HRA programme, together with half
the fee income now no longer chargeable.

Expenditure

23.Rent Income Collection shows a large credit for the year. This represents the reversal of
most of the £1.2million Southfield Park provision following a successful conclusion to
the dispute. £0.633million of this has been transferred to reserves to fund specific future
activity and is discussed further in this report. Tower Blocks and flats were also lower
than budgeted primarily due to public utility savings and lower disturbance payments
being made.

24.Management and Infrastructure expenditure for the year was higher than budgeted due
to increased SLA recharges from Community Housing and Business Systems.

25.Despite the increase in HRA dwelling arrears predominately caused by the introduction
of the Direct Payments scheme the resultant bad debts provision contribution required
from revenue was still contained with the annual budget. This is due to a prudent
approach to this area being planned within the HRA Business Plan. This approach
continues in future years as we see the continuation of the Government’s welfare
reforms.

26.Day to day responsive repairs was higher than budgeted due to increased night time
call out costs, fire damage and emergency repairs expenditure, together with a higher
demand placed on the service during the later months of the financial year. This was
mainly offset by the surplus generated by the Building Services service on its £17million
annual turnover. The surplus arose from vacant posts and increased contributions from
HRA capital works, mainly from Kitchens and Bathroom installations.

Appropriations

27.There was a £7million transfer to the Major Repairs Reserve to fund future capital
spend, £0.250million for a stock condition survey to take place in 2013/14, £0.183million
being approved carry forward requests for the HRA with the balance made up from
setting resources aside to fund the new local pay deal for HRA staff, fund future
structure reviews and contribute towards new Welfare Fraud officers.

28.The HRA capital programme was overall underspent for the year against the original
budget and this is reflected in a reduced level of revenue contributions of £0.940million.
Furthermore, following the final audit of the Council’s housing subsidy claim for 2011/12
the authority received £0.231million back from DCLG as part of the claim. Lastly,
savings in interest payments were made against the HRA internal borrowing levels due
to a lower interest rate being applied than budgeted.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
General Fund and HRA Capital Programme

29.A capital budget position, approved for the General Fund and HRA Capital Programme
for 2012/13 is shown in summary at Table 4 below. Appendix 2 attached shows the

Capital Programme on a scheme by scheme basis.

30.As at the end of March the Capital Programme shows a favourable variance of
£0.739million.

Page 732



Table 4 — Capital Programme as at 31st March 2013

% Budget Outtun Outturn
Approved Spent to Outturn |Variance due to Variance
Budget (per 31st March Outturn |Variance due| Over/ Under Outturn Movement Q3
Capital Scheme Budget Book) | Latest Budget| Actual YTD 2013 Variance Q4 | to Slippage spend Variance Q3 to Q4
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ £

City Development 0 511,484 543,817 106% 32,333 (19,311) 51,645 (258,030) (290,363)
Environmental Development 800,000 550,000 626,403 r 114% 76,403 76,403 0| (200,000) (276,403)
Communities and Housing 252,302 340,000 175,196 f 52% (164,804) (19,300) (145,504) 15,000 179,804
Corporate Assets 5,409,565 3,691,050 3,346,467 91% (344,584) (344,584) 0 (329,022) 15,562
Customer Services 126,958 1] 1] 0% 0 0 0| 0 0|
City Leisure 9,682,589 1,474,774 1,312,088[ 89% (162,686) (195,132) 32,446 (572,841) (410,155)
Direct Services 2,564,051 2,283,407 2,152,525 94% (130,882) (134,735) 3,852 (219,000) (88,118)
Business Transformation 637,434 575,860 576,895 f 100% 1,035 0 1,035 0 (1,035)
GF Total 19,472,898 9,426,576 8,733,390 r 93% (693,186) (636,659) (56,526) (1,563,893) (870,707)
Housing Revenue Account 8,395,000 7,635,211 7,589,646 r 99% (45,567) 0 (45,567) 0 45,567
Grand Total 27,867,898 17,061,787| 16,323,036 96% (738,753) (636,659) (102,093) (1,563,893) (825,140)
Total General Fund Financing 19,472,898 9,426,576, 8,733,394 93% (693,186) (636,659) (56,527) (1,563,894) (870,708)
Total HRA Financing 8,395,000 7,635,211 7,635,211 100% (45,567) 0 (45,567) 0 45,567
Total Financing 27,867,898 17,061,787|  16,368,605[ 96% (738,753) (636,659) (102,094) (1,563,894) (825,141)

31.0verall the Council achieved a 96% spend against the latest budget for the year. Taking
each service area in turn the comments are as follows:

32.City Development £0.032million adverse variance largely caused by increased
Wayfinding work that was funded from New Growth Points capital grant.

33.Environmental Development £0.076million adverse variance principally relating to

increased contributions towards County Council Occupational Therapist costs relating to
Disabled Facilities Grants activity.

34.Communities & Housing £0.165million favourable variance largely caused by reduced
Old Fire Station expenditure incurred in 2012/13 relating to final retention and defects
period payments.

35.Corporate Assets £0.345million favourable variance caused by slippages relating to
capital projects including Covered Market improvements, Broad Street upgrade and roof
repairs to 44-46 George Street, Depot Relocation Feasibility studies, various Parks and
Leisure buildings and conference/Fire Alarm works to the Town Hall.

36. City Leisure £0.163million favourable variance resulting from slippages on capital
projects including General Leisure centre improvements, Lye Valley and Chiswell Valley
walkways, delays in Sports Pavilions improvements and slippages to upgrades on
tennis courts and existing multi-use games areas.

37.Direct Services £0.131million favourable variance being the net impact of delays in
purchasing replacement vehicles and plant.

38.HRA £0.046million favourable variance being the net underspends in the year primarily
associated with voids work, disabled adaptations associated with major conversions,
general reductions in the Major Projects Team capital activity and structural type works.
There were increased spends associated with Kitchens and Bathrooms replacements
where an additional 45 properties over and above those originally planned for the year
were undertaken along with increased spend associated with consultancy work linked
with the AHP New Build properties.

F3g: 8



PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

39. There are a number of additional key performance indicators that need to be assessed

along with the financial performance information to provide an overall financial health
check position for the authority as at the end of March 2013. These additional indicators
are detailed as follows:

Housing Benefit Overpayments

40.During March new overpayments totalling £0.338million were identified whilst a total of

41.

£0.230million was recovered - either by offsets/deductions of Housing Payment or by
actual payments received. The monthly collection rate was thus 67.91% making the
cumulative year to date result 84.15% (internal target 82%).

Total overpayments raised for the period 01/04/12-31/03/13 were £3.689million, a figure
that is 2.9% down on last year's equivalent of £3.798million. The overall arrears rose
over March from £4.509million at the start of the month to £4.584million at the end of
the month. The current total is 4.8% up on the equivalent figure of 12 months ago.
Please note that there remain a considerable number of accounts that are awaiting
write-off. The outstanding amount will become much more realistic when those write offs
have been processed.

Overall Housing Benefit Overpayments outstanding (£'000)

5,000
4,900
4,800
4,700 -

4,600 — e - —

4,500 e TR

"=

1,300 - 7 i +-2011/12

1,200 o | | -=-2012/13
1,100 _ e e

000 R
,900 —
3,800 —g——o—=*
3,700
3,600
3,500 T T T T T T T T T T T T
Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Month

Investment Performance

42.The cumulative average rate of return on investments to 31st March 2013 was 0.89%.

This continues to be 11 basis points below the treasury performance indicator target of
50 basis points above the Bank of England’s Base Rate and is forecast to continue this
downturn in performance.

43.The reduction in the rate of return over the last few months has been due to worsening

market conditions, which has led to a reduction in lending options and a significant
decrease in LIBID rates offered by the remaining counterparties on the Council’s
Treasury Management Lending List. Although there has been a steady increase in
average investment balances (caused by the favourable variances on the General Fund

Page 934



and slippages in both the HRA and GF capital programme), which has led to new
deposits placed being invested albeit at much lower return rates than budgeted.

Business Rates

44.The arrears carried forward on April 1st 2012 of £3.490m had fallen to £1.100m a year
later, a reduction of 68.47%. This figure was a healthy 36.9% down on the arrears figure
12 months earlier.

45.During March payments received were £0.073m making total arrears cash received in
2012/13 £1.207m. Write offs processed during March totalled £0.697m making the total
for the year £1.026m. During March there were credit adjustments of £0.167m that were
mainly due to Mandatory Relief being granted to Academies. There was a total of
£0.171m refunded.

46.The collection rate for 2011/12 had moved on from 97.75% at year end to 98.88% at the
end of March. The 2012/13 collection rate was 97.41% at 31/03/13, 0.34% down on last
year's equivalent of 97.75%. We were at 31 March £0.496m down on our profiled year-
end collection target 98%.

Business Rates Arrears ——2011/12

5,000 -
4,500 -
4,000 -

3,500 -

v

©3,000 |

(=]

22,500 -

2,000 -
81,500

£1,000 |

500

—8—2012/13

Mar Apr May Jun Ju Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

Council Tax Arrears Collection

Council Tax Arrears

——2011/12

7,000 -
=-2012/13

6,000 -

5,000 -

o

(=]

(=]
L

Amoun}(£0Q0's
R gl
o o
& o
1 |

1,000 -

0 T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
Month

P&R& 10



47.The arrears carried forward at the beginning of the financial year were £5.986m and had
dropped to £4.070m by March 2013. This represents an overall reduction in the year of

32%. The arrears figure on 31 March 2013 was 7.4% up on the equivalent figure 12
months ago.

48.During March the arrears fell by £0.197m. This was helped by write offs being
processed during the month of £0.088m. Payments received during the month totalled
£0.089m but a total of £0.017m was refunded. Debit adjustments (retrospective
discounts, exemptions etc.) of £0.024m were also undertaken during March.

49.During 2012/13 the Council received arrears cash of £1.456m. This has meant that last

year's collection rate had moved from 96.80% (at 31/03/12) to 98.08% as at the end of
2012/13.

50.The current year collection rate at 31 March 2013 was 97.01%, which was up on last

year's equivalent of 96.80%. In cash collection terms we were £0.057k down on the
profiled collection target for the 31 March 2013 of 97.1%.

Housing Rent Arrears

51.Analysis of current and former tenant rent arrears is shown below for the 12 month
period ending 31st March 2013.

Analysis 1 - HRA Rent Arrears Current Tenants and Former Tenants

1,600,000

1,400,000

1,200,000

1,000,000
800,000 #/

600,000

—f—_Current Tenants

—fll—Former Tenants
400,000

200,000 —W.—.—._-’

Apr-12
May-12
Jun-12
Jul-12
Aug-12
Sep-12
Oct-12
Nov-12
Dec-12
Jan-13
Feb-13
Mar-13

Page 186



Analysis 2 - HRA Rent Arrears Current Tenants and Former Tenants

HRA Dwellings Arrears

O Current Tenants m Fomer Tenants

1,800

1,600

1.400 I_I—

Tl N

oy

o

§ 1,000 -—r —

£ B B

£ L B

2 800

=,
600 1 —
400 1 —
200 +— —

0

Sep-12
Oct-12
Noy-12
Dec-12
Jan-13
Feb-13
Mar-13

Aug-12

May-12
Jun-12
Jul-12

Apr-12

52.HRA arrears (including dwellings, garages and rechargeable repairs etc.) totalled
£1.348million at the end of the financial year, a reduction of £0.040million on last
month’s position of £1.388million. The overall total is £0.529million more than that
reported 12 months ago, principally created by timing differences arising from the
Council being one of the first authorities in the country to pilot Direct Payments. The
scheme has been extended and detail regarding compensation for increased arrears
resulting from the pilot is still awaited from DWP.

53.Former tenant arrears stood at £0.202million as at the end of March 2013, which is
£0.077million higher than that reported for a year ago. This has occurred as a result of
several tenants that have recently vacated their property and doing so with substantial
arrears associated with their rent accounts. The authority has only written-off
approximately £0.022m of former tenant arrears during the year, which is considerably
lower than previous years (£0.156m 2011/12, £0.154m 2010/11) and has inevitably
contributed to the higher figure. The Rents Team is determined to recover all rent
arrears and is confident this figure will reduce during 2013/14.

54.The Council provided a bad debt provision of £0.410million in 2012/13 and only
£0.274million was needed despite the increased arrears position.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name: Nigel Kennedy

Job title: Head of Finance

Service Area / Department Finance and Efficiency
Tel: 01865 272708 e-mail: nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk

PRIE 12



Page 138



Appendix 1

Approved Budget % Budget Spent to | Outturn Variance | Outturn Variance Outturn Variance
Latest Budget Actual YTD M t fi
GF Outturn Report 12/13 (per Budget book) SIS ua 31st Mar 2013 Q4 Q3 ovement from
Q3 to Q4
£000's £000's £000's % £000's
Directorates
Policy, Culture & Communication 1,525 1,443 1,329 92% (114) 114
Chief Executive 1,525 1,443 1,329 92% (114) 114
City Development 1,039 1,441 1,617 112% 176 38 (138)
Housing 7,152 2,962 2,693 91% (269) (184) 85|
Corporate Property (3,733) (3,762) (4,340) 115% (578) (531) 47|
City Regeneration 4,457 641 (30) (5%) (670) (677) (7)
Environmental Development 1,638 1,489 1,393 94% (96) 96
Leisure & Parks 3,357 3,103 3,117 100% 15 (30) (45)
Direct Services (1,213) (1,034) (1,682) 163% (648) (700) (52)
Community Development Team 3,754 3,565 95% (189) (191) (2)
Community Services 3,882 7,312 6,394 87% (918) (921) (3)
Transformation Fund 376 621 621 100% ()
Business Improvement & Technology 3,533 3,315 3,283 99% (32) 32
Customer Services 2,536 2,688 2,735 102% 47 (47)
Finance 2,209 2,172 2,065 95% (107) (90) 17
Human Resources & Facilities 1,078 1,616 1,893 117% 277 90 (187)
Law & Governance 2,448 2,549 2,825 111% 276 100 (176)
Organisational Dev & Corp Services 12,180 12,962 13,423 104% 462 100 (362)
Directorate Total Excl SLA's & Capital Charges 22,044 22,357 21,117 94% (1,241) (1,498) (257)
SLA's & Capital Charges (1,274) (1,276) 738 (58%) 2,013 (2,013)
Corporate Accounts 1,815 1,831 (849) (46%) (2,680) 367 3,047
Contingencies 3,151 775 61 8% (714) 714
Total Corporate Accounts & Contingencies 4,966 2,606 (788) () (3,394) 367 3,761
Net Expenditure Budget 25,736 23,688 21,066 (2,621) (1,131) 1,490
Transfer to / (from) GF working balances (1,622) (1,622) (1,622) 100%
Transfer to / (from) Ear Marked Reserves 2,049 5,053 3,005 (3,005)
Net Budget Requirement 24,113 24,114 24,497 383 (1,131) (1,514)
Funding
External Funding 11,719 11,719 12,028 103% 309 310 1]
Council tax 12,587 12,587 12,661 101% 74 (74)
Less Parish Precepts (193) (193) (193) 100%
Total Funding Available 24,113 24,113 24,497 383 310 (73)
(Surplus) / Deficit for year () () (1,441) (1,441)

39



Capital Budget and Spend as at 31st March 2013

% Budget Outtarn |
Approved Spent to Outturn Outtun Variance Variance
Budget (per 31st March Outturn Variance due | due to Over/ Outturn Movement Q3 to
Capital Scheme Budget Book) | Latest Budget | Actual YTD 2013 Variance Q4 | to Slippage Under spend Variance Q3 Q4
£ £ £ % £ £ £ £ £
F1323 Bridge Over Fiddlers Stream 150,000 146,687 98% (3,313) (3,313) 0 0 0
F1330 Work of Art Donnington Middle School 1,000 929 93% (72) 0 (72) 0 (72)]
F6013 Bullingdon Community Centre -Enhancement of Community 4,807 3,270 68% (1,537) (1,537)
Facilities
F6015 Slade Area Public Work of Art 3,379 3,150 93% (229) 0 (229) 0 (229)]
F7008 Landscaping Work at Lamarsh Road 15,636 1,176 8% (14,460) (14,460) 0 0 0|
F7019 Work of Art at Rose Hill 5,300 9,022 170% 3,722 0 3,722 0 3,722
F7021 St Lukes Church Community Facilities 16,362 16,362 100% (0) 0 0 o] 0
M5014 West End Partnership 315,000 363,222 115% 48,222 0 48,222 0 48,222,
City Development 0 511,484 543,817 106% 32,333 (19,311) 51,645 (258,030) (290,363)
E3511 Renovation Grants 50,000 50,000 52,986 106% 2,986 2,986 0 0| 0|
E3521 Disabled Facilities Grants 750,000 500,000 573,417 115% 73,417 73,417 0 0 0
E3553 Carbon Reduction
i | Devel 800,000 550,000 626,403 114% 76,403 76,403 0 (200,000) (276,403)
G1013 Dawson Street Gardens 19,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0]
G3013 Diamond Place car park footpath extension 6,324 0 0 0% 0 0 0, 0 o]
G3014 East Oxford Community Association Improvements 2,550 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0| (o]
G4006 Florence Park CC Kitchen 1,411 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0|
G6010 Mount Place Square Refurbishment 383 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0|
G6011 St Lukes Church Hall Extension 10,000 10,000 10,000 100% 0 0 0 0 (o]
G6012 South Oxford Community Centre Main Hall Replacement Ceiling 9,238 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0| (o]
G3015 NE Marston Croft Road Recreation Ground 25,000 25,000 5,700 23% (19,300) (19,300) 0 0 0]
G3016 Peat Moors all weather pitch 17,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
G3017 CCTV Replacement Programme 84,271 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 (o]
M5015 Old Fire Station 77,125 305,000 159,496 52% (145,504) 0 (145,504) 0 (145,504)|
Communities and Housing 252,302 340,000 175,196 52% (164,804) (19,300) (145,504) 15,000 179,804
A4808 Blackbird Leys LC Improvements 128,278 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
A4812 Building Improvements (GF Leisure) 22,684 0 0 0% 0 0 0, 0 0
A4813 Hinksey Pools main pool liner 110,000 110,000 117,400 107% 7,400 0 7,400 0 7,400
A4814 Leisure Centre substantive repairs 419,641 242,326 174,011 72% (68,316) (60,916) (7,400) (7,400) (7,400)
Offices for the Future 0 0 0|
Q2000 Offices for the Future 383,347 543,347 563,391 104% 20,044 0 20,044 0 20,044
Community Centres
B0022 DDA East Oxford Community Centre Lift 109,083 103,000 101,077 98% (1,923) 0 (1,923) 0 (1,923)
B0033 Community Centres 315,765 315,765 224,069 71% (91,696) (91,696) 0, 0 0
B0034 Rose Hill Community Centre 148,000 90,000 81,662 91% (8,338) (8,338) 0 0 0|
Covered Market
B0010 Covered Market signage improvements 42,941 22,000 29,584 134% 7,584 7,584
B0027 Covered Market - Improvements & Upgrade to Roof 76,061 70,061 13,090 19% (56,971) (56,971)
B0028 Covered Market - New Roof Structures to High St Entrances 115,000 25,000 1,800 7% (23,200) (23,200)
B0036 Investment ~ Covered Market 232,251 182,251 150,451 83% (31,800) (31,800)
B0063 Covered Market Replacement Sprinkler System 150,000 20,000 24,879 124% 4,879 4,879 0, 0 0
B0064 Covered Market - Improvements to Emergency Lighting 50,000 50,000 79,790 160% 29,790 29,790 0 0 0]
Investment Properties
BO0003 Roof Repairs & Ext Refurbishment 44-46 George St 30,000 30,000 2,923 10% (27,077) (27,077) 0 0 0|
B0040 Investment ~ Broad Street 167,500 154,500 35,416 23% (119,084) (113,911) (5,173) (5,173) (5,173)
B0041 Investment - Misc City Centre Properties 7,000 7,000 9,520 136% 2,520 2,520 0 0 0]
B0042 Investment - Gloucester Green 5,500 17,000 21,457 126% 4,457 0 4,457 0 4,457
B0044 Investment - Outer City 15,000 18,000 17,846 99% (154) 0 (154) 0 (154),
B0045 Investment ~ St. Michael’s Street 43,000 0 3,750 0% 3,750 3,750 0 o] 0
B0046 Investment - Ship Street 20,000 0 500 0% 500 500 0 0 0]
B0070 Ramsay House Replacement Comfort Cooling System 300,000 175,000 181,294 104% 6,294 0 6,294 0 6,294
Miscellaneous Council Properties
B0031 Miscellaneous Admin Buildings 25,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
B0035 Miscellaneous Civic Properties 52,218 52,218 58,028 111% 5,809 0 5,809 0 5,809
B0037 Car Parks 135,380 62,380 69,328 111% 6,948 6,948 0 0 0
B0039 Houses and Lodges 16,423 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0]
B0052 Miscellaneous Properties 75,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 (o]
B0053 Public Toilets 489 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
BOO55 Property Surveys 57,600 116,000 120,521 104% 4,521 0 4,521 0 4,521
BO0059 FIT Panels on Leisure Buildings 0 1,150 9,683 842% 8,533 0 8,533 0 8,533
BOO060 Feasibility Studies Depot Relocation 250,000 90,000 59,453 66% (30,547) 0 (30,547) 0 (30,547)
Parks & Cemeteries
B0048 Leisure - Cemeteries 13,500 13,500 16,866 125% 3,366 3,366 0 0 0
BO0050 Leisure ~ Depots 74,000 74,000 70,191 95% (3,809) (3,809) 0 0 0|
BO0051 Leisure - Pavilions 110,500 60,500 120,225 199% 59,725 59,725 0 0 0|
B0065 Parks & Cemetery - Masonry Walls & Path Improvements 40,000 40,000 25,326 63% (14,674) (14,674)
B0067 Fencing Repairs across the City 150,000 75,000 91,564 122% 16,564 16,564 0 0 0]
BOO071 Parks properties (H&S works) 36,648 14,648 7,624 52% (7,024) (7,024)
A4825 Oxford City Football Ground 65,000 65,000 100% 0 0 0 0 0|
A4823 Cemetery Development 15,000 2,500 2,479 99% (21) 0 (21) 0 (21)
Town Hall
B0054 Town Hall 795,852 398,000 390,220 98% (7,780) (7,780) 0 0 0
BO0O056 City Centre Office Security 75,904 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 (o]
B0057- Town Hall Fire Alarm 195,000 350,904 339,064 97% (11,840) 0 (11,840) 0 (11,840)
B0068 Town Hall - Conference System Refurbishment 400,000 100,000 66,988 67% (33,012) (33,012) 0 0 0
Corporate Assets 5,409,565 3,691,050 3,346,467 91% (344,584) (344,584) 0 (329,022) 15,562
C3041 New server for telephone system 11,288 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0|
C3042 Customer First Programme 115,670 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0|
Customer Services 126,958 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
A1300 Playground Refurbishment 414,797 404,797 419,600 104% 14,803 14,803 0 14,803
A1301 Play Barton 113,538 20,951 20,963 100% 12 0 12 0 12

40

Appendix 2



Capital Budget and Spend as at 31st March 2013

% Budget Outtarn |
Approved Spent to Outturn Outtun Variance Variance
Budget (per 31st March Outturn Variance due | due to Over/ Outturn Movement Q3 to
Capital Scheme Budget Book) | Latest Budget | Actual YTD 2013 Variance Q4 | to Slippage Under spend Variance Q3 Q4

A4810 New Build Completion Pool 7,582,254 22,000 21,337 97% (663) 0 (663) 0 (663)
A4824 Contribution to Skate Park 50,000 313,813 332,806 106% 18,993 0 18,993 0 18,993
73010 Rosehill/Iffley Play Sites 38,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
A4815 Leisure Centre Improvement Work 700,000 324,013 276,762 85% (47,251) (47,251) 0 0 (o]
A4830 Develop new burial space 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0|
A4818 Lye Valley & Chiswell Valley Walkways 62,000 62,000 0 0% (62,000) (62,000) 0 0 o]
A4816 Sports Pavilions 450,000 100,000 34,182 34% (65,818) (65,818) 0 0 0
A4819 Rose Hill Cemetery Water Leak 8,000 8,000 7,300 0% (700) 0 (700) 0 (700),
A4820 Upgrade Existing Tennis Courts 50,000 50,000 40,817 82% (9,183) (9,183) 0 0| 0
A4821 Upgrade Existing Multi-Use Games Area 76,000 93,000 77,824 84% (15,176) (15,176) 0 0| 0|
A4822 Recycling & Bin Improvement (City Parks) 38,000 75,000 75,000 100% 0 0 0, 0| [o]
F0015 Cycle Oxford 100,000 1,200 5,497 458% 4,297 4,297
City Leisure 9,682,589 1,474,774 1,312,088 89% (162,686) (195,132) 32,446 (572,841) (410,155)
FO011 Pay & Display Parking in the Car Parks 84,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0| (o]
FO012 P & R Purchase of Capital Items - Peartree, Redbridge 191,644 10,000 27,335 273% 17,335 17,335 0 0 0|
F0014 Purchase of ANPR for use in car park enforcement 50,000 32,000 48,143 150% 16,143 16,143 0 0 0]
RO005 MT Vehicles/Plant Replacement Programme. 1,500,500 1,497,500 1,318,622 88% (178,879) (178,879) 0 0 0|
T2266 Purchase of Brown Bins Waste Recycling 7,907 7,907 7,907 100% 0 0 0 0 0|
T2267 Purchase of two hand operated street sweepers 30,000 30,000 30,000 100% 0 0 0 0| 0|
T2268 Purchase of two vehicles for garden waste collection 155,000 155,000 162,610 105% 7,610 7,610 0, o] 0
T2269 Toilet improvements 185,000 191,000 194,055 102% 3,055 3,055 0 0 0|
T2270 Bin stores for council flats to assist recycling 325,000 325,000 329,158 101% 4,158 0 4,158 0 4,158,
T2271 Low emission vehicle for litter bin collection 20,000 20,000 19,929 100% (71) 0 (71) 0 (71)
T2272 Wyatt Road Resurfacing Works 15,000 15,000 14,765 98% (235) 0 (235) o] (235)|
Direct Services 2,564,051 2,283,407 2,152,525 94% (130,882) (134,735) 3,852 (219,000) (88,118)
C3039 ICT Infrastructure 260,434 260,434 220,719 85% (39,715) 0 (39,715) 0| (39,715)
C3043 ICT Development 200,000 150,000 190,662 127% 40,662 0 40,662 0 40,662
(3044 Software Licences 177,000 165,426 165,514 100% 88 0 88! 0 88
Business Transformation 637,434 575,860 576,895 100% 1,035 0 1,035 0 (1,035)
GF Total 19,472,898 9,426,576 8,733,390 93% (693,186) (636,659) (56,526) (1,563,893) (870,707)
External Contracts
NA2R4 Faresters Towers 1000 00N 25 0NN A 5R4 19% 28 43A) 0 (78 43R) 0 7R 4364
N6387 Controlled Entry 0 175,000 138,997 79% (36,003) 0 (36,003) 0 36,003
N6393 External Doors 200,000 200,000 172,044 86% (27,956) 0 (27,956) 0 27,956
N7020 External Adaptations 0 250,000 78,405 31% (171,595) 0 (171,595) o] 171,595
N7021 Extensions 0 0 32,554 0% 32,554 0 32,554 0 (32,554)
N7018 Minox 0 19,500 1,063 5% (18,437) 0 (18,437) 0 18,437
N6394 Windows 300,000 300,000 299,257 100% (743) 0 (743) 0 743]
N6389 Damp-proof works (K&B) 0 90.000 88,106 98% (1.894) 0 (1.894) 0 1.894
N6392 Roofing 250,000 150,000 132,428 88% (17,572) 0 (17,572) 0 17,572
N6386 Structural 0 125,000 91,609 73% (33,391) 0 (33,391) 0 33,391
N7010 Headley House - Refurbishment 0 0 2 0% 2 0 2 o] )
N6427 Shops 0 69,000 65,232 95% (3,768) 0 (3,768) 0 3,768
N6396 Sheltered Blocks 0 0 602 0% 602 0 602! 0 (602)
N7028 Non Dwelling HRA Assets 117,000 48,000 0 0% (48,000) 0 (48,000) 0 48,000
N7026 Communal Areas 150,000 35,000 38,027 109% 3,027 0 3,027 0 (3,027)
N7027 Environmental Improvements 100,000 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0 0
New Build 0
N7010 Headley House - Refurbishment 0 0 2 0% 0 0 0 0 0
N7011 Cardinal House - Refurbishment 0 15,427 (5,434) 0% (20,861) 0 (20,861) o] 20,861
N7019 Lambourn Road 0 (12,716) 6,673 0% 19,389 0 19,389 0 (19,389)
N7029 HCA New Build 0 550,000 727,007 132% 177,007 0 177,007, 0 (177,007)
Internal Contracts 0
N6385 Adaptations for disabled 900,000 600,000 570,510 95% (29,490) 0 (29,490) 0 29,490
N6390 Kitchens & Bathrooms 2,850,000 2,850,000 3,128,858 110% 278,858 0 278,858 0 (278,858)
N6391 Heating 1,256,000 1,256,000 1,230,123 98% (25,877) 0 (25,877) 0 25,877
N6388 Major Voids 850,000 550,000 456,386 83% (93,614) 0 (93,614) 0 93,614
N6395 Electrics 422,000 330,000 330,632 100% 632 0 632 0 (632)
New HRA Bids Approved for 2013/14
Housing Revenue Account 8,395,000 7,635,211 7,589,646 99% (45,567) 0 (45,567) 0 45,567
Grand Total 27,867,898 17,061,787 16,323,036 96% (738,753) (636,659) (102,093) (1,563,893) (825,140)
Financing - General Fund
Developer contributions 0 512,503 514,011 1,508 1,508
Government Funding 590,000 766,927 1,253,911 486,984 486,984
Capital Receipts 7,079,787 2,382,140 1,613,449 (768,691) (712,164) (56,527) (1,563,894) (870,708)
Direct Revenue Funding 3,600,000 3,600,000 3,270,642 (329,362) (329,362)
Revenue Reserves 457,505 617,505 550,220 (67,285) (67,285)
DREF For Vehicles 1,481,485 1,547,500 1,531,161 (16,339) (16,339)
Prudential Borrowing 6,264,121
Total General Fund Financing 19,472,898 9,426,576 8,733,394 93% (693,186) (636,659) (56,527) (1,563,894) (870,708)
Financing - HRA
MRR 8,395,000 7,635,211 7,635,211 (45,567) 0 (45,567) 0 45,567
Capital receipts 0
Decent Homes Reserve 0
Prudential Borrowing 0
External Contributions
Total HRA Financing 8,395,000 7,635,211 7,635,211 100% (45,567) 0 (45,567) 0 45,567
Total Fi 27,867,898|  17,061,787| 16,368,605 96% (738,753) (636,659) (102,094) (1,563,894) (825,141)

41

Appendix 2



HRA DRAFT OUTTURN 2012-13

Appendix 3

Approved % Budget Outturn Outturn \?al:::i::
HRA Outturn Report 12/13 Budget (per | Latest Budget | Actual YTD | Spent to 31st Varlance Q4 | Variance @3 | Movement
budget book) March 2013 from Q3 to Q4
£'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000 £'000 £'000
Dwelling Rent (36,508) (36,508) (37,140) 102% (632) 90 722
Service Charges (956) (956) (970) 101% (13) 13
Shops/Garages/Furn/Other Rent (2,208) (2,300) (2,433) 106% (133) 133
Rechargeable Fees/Other (721) (621) (187) 30% 434 (434)
Net Income (40,393) (40,386) (40,730) (345) 90 435
Rent/Income Collection 361 357 (866) -242% (1,222) (1,296) (74)
Tower Blocks and Flats 598 597 490 82% (108) 2 110
Management/Infrastructure 1,839 1,883 2,175 116% 292 (46) (338)
Depreciation 8,147 5,888 5,888 100% ()
ICT services 281 281 281 100% ()
Contact Centre 786 786 782 100% (4) 4
Rent Team 499 502 446 89% (56) 122 178
Tenant's Participation 208 250 226 91% (24) (42) (18)
Furnished Tenancies 473 543 487 90% (57) 57
Local Housing Management 835 837 875 105% 38 (4) (42)
Major Projects/Policy/Technical 626 626 531 85% (95) (2) 93
Bad Debt Provision 410 410 274 67% (136) 136
Site Preparation 201 200 134 67% (66) 66
Sub Total Tenancy Management 15,264 13,160 11,722 (1,438) (1,266) 172
Caretaking Service 941 941 941 100%
Garden Scheme 268 268 268 100%
Void Property officers/Garage team 248 248 248 100%
Day to Day Responsive 4,450 4,463 4,844 109% 382 (382)
Planned Maintenance 4,938 5,205 5,286 102% 81 400 319
Direct Services Capital Overheads 636 740 518 70% (222) 222
Sub Total Repairs & Maintenance 11,481 11,865 12,106 241 400 159
Total Expenditure 26,746 25,025 23,828 (1,197) (866) 331
Net Transfer To/From Reserves 7,000 6,862 7,506 109% 644 (780) (1,424)
Revenue Contribution to Capital 383 2,642 1,702 64% (940) (383) 557
Additional HRA Subsidy (231) (231) 231
Interest On Balances (35) (35) (64) 184% (29) (50) (21)
Interest Payable 8,055 7,100 6,895 97% (205) 205
CDC, Pensions & Retirement Costs 111 112 15 13% (97) 97
Total Appropriations 15,514 16,682 15,822 (860) (1,213) (353)
Total HRA (Surplus)/Deficit 1,867 1,321 (1,080) (2,402) (1,989) 413

42



¢ xipuaddy

96828l 0 968281 968281
9vL'68L°1 86L°€Cy 8¥£'G9. 190'681°1
veLiie 0 veLiie veLiie
9¥6'28 0 9¥6'28 9¥6'28
969°25¢ go9'eel LEO'VCL 969°'/5¢
08¢€‘GYe €€L'g YAZAVRAA Log‘sve
000°05¢ 000°001 000°0S} 000°'0S¢
000°S 000°S 0 000°G
000°0t} 000°0¥L 0 000°0¥}
000°25L 000°2 000°0SL 000°LG1
000°0€ 000°0€ 0 000°'0€
3 3 3 3

|eyoL panoiddy panouddy pajsanbay

JON junowy
sliojoailq

VdH

90UBUISAOD puE MEeT
soliloe pUE $82IN0Say UeWnH
S80IAI9S JaWo)sn)
wswdojaasg Ayunwwo)
S82IAI8S J08lI0

Syled pue ainsio

BuisnoH

juswdojanaqg AlD

00d

uonduoasaqg

€1/2102 S1SINDIY QYVMHOL AHHVI 40 AUVINNNS

43



000°'0€ 000°0€ 0 000°0€
‘pasijeal aq jou ||Im {1/€1.0Z 10} s}obie) awodu| 000°'0€  000°0€ 000°0€
3 3 3 3
Buinoidde jou jo sasuanbasuon lejoL panoiddy parosddy pajsanbay
JON junowy
si0j0a41q

Anoon d

Ag papiwagng

snueAey - 1sIi4 Jawoisny

uonduosag

NOILVOINNININOD ANV 34NLTNI "AdIT0d
€L/Z10Z S1STNDIY QUYVMYOL AHYVD 40 AMVININNS

44



‘Ao

By} ul BuioAo s1ow aHEINOOUS pue YIoMJaU Bj0AD BACIdWI O} HJOM UlIM NUiRU0D 000°L

Buiroadde jou jo seouanbasuo)n

0007261 00072 000051 000°/S1
000'0S} 000°0S 000'0S1 Aaidog [ sbuljamp [nymejun
0002 0002 sejeg N Ao 810hD
3 3 3 3
leyoL panoiddy poarosddy pajsanbay Ag paniwqgng uonduoasag
JON junowy
si030341Q

1INIINJOTIAIA ALID
€1/2102 S1SINDIY AUVMIOL AYUVI 4O AYVININNS

45



wliojoy aJejlsM a1 vL/€L0c

Ul 180140 YoealNo puny 0} Pasn €1/z10z Ul paunoul spuadsiapun Buiyels 0000t
¥1/€102 404 195 sjobuiey ysutebe asn 0} €1/210Z Ul paunoul spuadsiapun 000001

Buiroadde jou jo seouanbasuo)n

000°0%1 000°0¥%} 0 000°0%1
000°0% 000°0%
000'00L 000'00L
3 3 3 3
leyoL panoiddy poarosddy pajsanbay
10N junowy
si030341Q

asuodsay

e s |leuonesijueblQ - wiojoy aieya
aen s S}S0D) UolEpPOWWO02Y Atesodwa |

Ag papiwgng uonduosaq
ONISNOH

€1/2102 S1SINDIY AUVMIOL AYUVI 4O AYVININNS

46



UOI}B}PaIDo. UONEID0SSY 94N} noHogly uieb o} aouensing 000'G

Buiroadde jou jo seouanbasuo)n leyoL

000G 000§ 0 000G
0008 000°S
3 3 3 3
panoiddy poarosddy pajsanbay
JON junowy
si030341Q

siamog yeles Bulutel] syied

Ag papiwgng uonduosaq

SV ANV FdNSIaT
€1/2102 S1SINDIY AUVMIOL AYUVI 4O AYVININNS

47



000°0S¢ 000°00} 000°05} 000°0SC
'€1/210Z Ul 921M8s 8y} Aq pajelssusb sem jey} swooul [BUOHIPPE JO
N 8y} aJe s92IN0saJ 9S8y} se Juadsiapun sem }oBpng ON "d4LIN Uim aul|
ul JeAouIN pasealoul djey|ioey 0} JodaQ peoy ysiep Jo Inoke| sy sroidwi 01 000°05Z 000°00L 000°0S 000'0S¢
3 3 3 3
Buiroadde jou jo seouanbasuo)n leyoL panoiddy poarosddy pajsanbay
10N junowy
si030341Q

uopnog 9

Ag papiwigng

sjuswanoidwi Jodaq peoy yolepy

uonduoasag

S3DIAY3S 103d1a

€1/2102 S1SINDIY AUVMIOL AYUVI 4O AYVININNS

48



08€'G¥C €€1'8 L¥T'LEC 10€'S¥C
‘Buipuny J1ay} 8A18981 Jou pjnom sdnolb AsejunjoA pue Ajunwwo)d 900°ZE 900'ce 900'ce 110J0)SUD awwelbold sjuels) uoniquy Yinoa
‘ling ul pajuswajdul
8 0} 8|ge aq jou |Im ‘pakelap yage ‘Buidoos josfoid Jo swiweiboid peaiby 620°901 6.,0'901 000'90} axo0.g | 108(01d UoRIqUIY YINOA
uayepspun aq jou ||IM asiolaxs buldods 000G 000°S 000'S 110J0)SUD Jo8lold aleysawoH
‘Pauonoe Jou INg €1/Z10Z Ul paplAoid piq B sem siyl 000°0S 000°0S 000°0S 110J0Js1D VY pund uoisnjou [e1oog
"eale 8y} ul pakojdwaun o} suoissas ul doip JaAled 6100 6%0°01 6¥0°01 110J0ISUD qnjo 3o 189
‘Ayunwwod uj sidoad Japjo
pajejos| Joddns 0} £1/Z10Z Ul papJeme 30Z3 8} Jo doueleq ayj sjussaidey €gL'e  €EL'E gelL'e 110J03S1D VY 108(o1d uone|os| sajdoad 4oplO
SpJepn vy} Ul spuads Jaquis|y poddns 0] €1 1'6E €11°6€ €11°6€ 110J0ISUD 1obpnq Jaquisy pJep
3 3 3 3
Buinoidde jou jo saouanbasuoy  |ejol panoaddy poanosddy pajsanbay Ag paniwqng uondussaq
10N junowy
si030a11Qq

1N3IWdOTIAIA ALINNWNOD
€1/210Z2 S1SINDIY QUVMYOL AHYVI 40 AYVINNNS

49



969'/GC S99°€EL 1e0vZl 9697262
"wiojay alejjap) Jo AlaAijep ay) Ul isisse 0) 910 wolj Asuow jueln 0LL'L€ 0bL'L€ 0bL'L€
oM Ojul yoeq sjueLWIe(d Jauaqg Hoddns o) 8jqeun #19'ce y192¢ v19'ze
‘SjUBWIED Jjouag Xe| [Iounod
104 waysAs poddns e sanep pue dojaasp 0} 91D woly Asuow juelb pasnun 20/°€S 10.‘€S 10.‘€S
"9NI9SOY SSOUSSOOWOH Ul WYL 6 0F 9AeH 1gap ojul Bupeb
a|doad aiow sny] ‘sjsanbai yual Jyeusg BuisnoH syuewred dn doy 0} ajgeun 0gs‘LzL 025121 0zs'1zL
‘uonjesniond pue malAal ] D] JO 8WooINo uo spuadaq "Umouy JON Szl SvLZlL SyLzL
3 3 3 3
Buinoadde jou jo saouanbasuon |ejol panoiddy panoiddy pajsanbay
JON junowy
si030a11q

doysig H
doysig H

doysig H
doysig H

doysig H

Ag papwqgng

wiojay aIBya A JO uonejuawsdwi| yym Jsisse o} Buipung
10l UPaID [eSIaAUN

w0l Jyauag xe] [1ounod Joj Buipund suaping maN
ainypuadx3 JuswAed BuisnoH Aleuonaiosiq

anuaAsy - }sli4 JawWosny

uonduosag

S3JIAYTS ¥INOLSND

€1/210Z2 S1SINDIY QUVMYOL AHYVI 40 AYVINNNS

50



VL/ELOT Ul [[B} MOU Jey} Sjusujiuwod
Aiejes ay) aoueul 0} SI SIY} 0S ‘IeaA-piw apew sem saonualdde jo yuswyuloddy 91628

Buiroadde jou jo seouanbasuo)n leyoL

or6'c8 976'¢8 9r6'c8
9v6°28 9v6'c8
3 3 3
panoiddy poarosddy pajsanbay
JON junowy
si030341Q

MOIMOH S saonuasddy

Ag papiwgng uonduosaq

S3AILITIOVd ANV S30¥NO0SIY NVINNH
€1/2102 S1SINDIY AUVMIOL AYUVI 4O AYVININNS

51



‘uayeuapun
87 JOU ||im Sp10d3l [B2LIO}SIY B|gen(eA s,AD By Jo Josoid ISINYDLY BYL $ZL LT

Buinoadde jou jo saouanbasuon |ejol

¥Zl'lc 0 vZlle vZlle
veLie veLie
3 3 3 3
panoiddy panoiddy pajsanbay
JON junowy
si030a11q

sewoy]

Ag papwqgng

108(01d ISINIYOIY

uonduosag

FONVNYIAO0O ANV MV
€1/210Z2 S1SINDIY QUVMYOL AHYVI 40 AYVINNNS

52



'€10¢Z ¥snbny Joy pauueld syiom Bunuied-aid ul shkejeq 968281

Buinoidde jou jo saouanbasuo) lejol

96828l 0 968281 968281
96828l 968°281
3 3 3 3
panosddy ponoiddy pajsanbay
JON jJunowy
sJ10)9911Q

9lAd O

Ag papiwuqgng

Bunuied jeusayx3

uonduosaq

VdH
€1/2102 S1STNDIY QUVMUO AHUVD 40 AUVINNNS

53



This page is intentionally left blank

54



Agenda Item 10

Questions to Board Members.

1 Question to Board Member for Communities (Councillor Bev
Clack) from Councillor David Williams

Donnington Recreation Ground

Would the Board Member care to elaborate what plans he has for the
development of Donnington Recreation Grounds and the supposed
rebuilding of the Community Association Building in a new grandiose
format.

Could he give details of the planned leasing arrangements with the
Community Association for the management of this grand pavilion and
indicate how much will be spent and where the money is coming from.

Could the Portfolio holder also explain why the plans for this new
venture have only been discussed in private with former Labour
Councillor Bill Baker and the Chair of the present Community
Association and why the local Councillors for the area (myself and
Councillor Elise Benjamin) have been excluded from these
discussions.

Further to the point could the Portfolio holder give a precise timescale
for the implementation of this project with a clear commitment that a
period of local consultation will be included in the proposal?

Reply

The Committee of the Donnington Community Association has been
pressing for some time for improvements to the site and to their
building, and discussions have taken place over the past year with the
Chair and the Secretary about the scope for partially funding an
improved centre from additional housing. No plan has yet emerged
from those discussions, and there will be a strategic review this coming
year of our community centres that will include Donnington. The Chair
and Secretary at Donnington are also the main officers of the
Federation and | have had discussions with them about this review
since taking on this portfolio.

2 Question to Board Member for City Development (Councillor
Cook) from Councillor Elise Benjamin

Covered Market rent rises.

Will the Portfolio Holder please provide an update on negotiations with
the Covered Market traders, who are fighting the Council’s attempt to
increase rents by up to 70%?

55



Reply

Five reviews are currently going to arbitration. The outcome of the
arbitration is expected in July. At the request of the CMTA tenants, the
Council has agreed to a separate consolidated arbitration in respect of
the CMTA reviews with the same arbitrator. The respective agents are
in contact regarding the consolidated arbitration to agree the process
going forward.

Question to Board Member for City Development (Councillor
Cook) from Councillor Elise Benjamin

Covered Market Charter

Will the Portfolio Holder please reassure the Council that, unlike his
predecessor, he will ensure that the Covered Market Charter is
followed, and that no more chain stores are allowed into the Covered
Market, thus preserving its character?

Reply

| am not aware of the document Cllr Benjamin refers to. If Clir
Benjamin is referring to the Covered Market Leasing Strategy | can
reassure her that all lettings have been, and will continue to be, in
compliance with that Strategy.

Question to Board Member for Corporate Governance and
Strategic Partnerships (Councillor Bob Price) from Councillor
Craig Simmons

Supporting Oxford’s Turkish Community

Will the Labour and Liberal Democrat leaders join me in supporting
Oxford’s Turkish Community who recently staged a vigil in Cornmarket
street in support of those peaceful protesters in Gezi park and Taksim
Square, suffering violence at the hands of the Erdogan Government?

Reply from Councillor Bob Price, Leader of Council

| am sure that all members of Council will support the right of the
Turkish people to express peaceful opposition to the policies of the
current government, and will deplore the use of violence leading to
some deaths in breaking up these protests.

56



Questions to the Board Member for Corporate Governance and
Strategic Partnerships, and Leader of Oxford City Council,
(Councillor Bob Price) from Councillor Dick Wolff.

Castle Mill development, Roger Dudman Way

(a) Regarding the planning process for the Castle Mill development:-

Could the leader confirm that the construction of the Oxford
University buildings on the former railway siding at Roger Dudman
Way not only went ahead but that the structural works were
completed without carrying out the required land contamination
surveys and resulting remediation prior to the start of development,
despite the fact that both officers and applicants believed the land
to be contaminated (as minuted in a meeting between officers and
developers on February 5th 2011) and the Phase 1 Environmental
Review (dated July 2011) recommended that “the presence of . .
historical contamination should be investigated in detail”?

Could he also confirm that the Planning Committee was not
informed, that the University had not only failed to research
contamination adequately and supply the necessary information
within the required time, but had also erroneously declared on their
application dated 1st Nov 2011 that contamination was not
“suspected for all or part of the site” when both officers and
applicant knew this to be incorrect?

Would the leader confirm that it is therefore not possible to justify
the claim (made by both City Council and University developers)
that correct planning process was followed with respect to this
application?

Given the persistent claims being made that the planning process
was not flawed, would the leader therefore agree with the MP for
Oxford West & Abingdon that an independent inquiry into the whole
handling of this application by Oxford City Council “may be the only
way we will get to the bottom of it”, and would he agree that the
very fact that this statement has been so publicly made by a local
MP brings our Council into disrepute?

Reply

The report to West Area Planning Committee in February 2013
advised that there were a number of conditions, including number
16, where details were still required to be formally submitted and
agreed. It did not advise Members that information required by part
of condition 16 had not been received in a timely manner as the
University was seeking to remedy this. Officers gave a verbal
assurance that the conditions were being complied with, in good
faith. A subsequent review of the evidence shows that in the case of

57



one of the conditions (Condition 16) the University was late in
submitting information and the Council has requested additional
analyses, so the condition is not discharged. It is open to the
University to remedy this, which it has been doing through further
analyses and reports. The University had completed a risk
assessment before commencing development, but had not agreed
the content of the report and submitted this to the Council prior to
starting on site.

If there has been a breach of a part of this condition it is open in the
first instance to the University to remedy this after the event.
Retrospective compliance is a possibility in view of the nature of the
breach and its timing. While the matter is still under investigation
there is no ground for litigation or pursuing the partial demolition of
the development.

(b) Regarding the potential environmental hazard presented by the
Castle Mill development :

Would the leader confirm that the builders of the Castle Mill
development have chosen, against the recommendations of the
ground investigation undertaken by the Frankham Consultancy
Group to set the buildings on piles, to set the buildings on spread
foundations some 2m below ground level and below the water table
by a depth of between 2m and 4m, and that this use of excavated
deep foundations (as opposed to piles) made a completed
contaminated land risk assessment even more important prior to
building?

Could he also confirm that the developer has still not satisfied the
Council or the Environment Agency that the development does not
represent an environmental hazard?

Will the Council, given the risk to public health and environment,
consider issuing a stop notice as for 10 months the University has
been given the opportunity to deal with the breach of condition
retrospectively without resolving this serious matter?

Reply

It was agreed some time ago that there would be an enquiry that
would review the planning processes and would seek to identify
lessons to be learnt and potential changes to future procedures for
handling planning applications. The structure and terms of
reference of that enquiry are under discussion and it is of cousre
intended to be thorough.

58



(c )Regarding the visibility of the Castle Mill Development :

Would the leader confirm that, contrary to the wording in the
planning proposal “will not be visible from the majority of Port
Meadow”, that the Roger Dudman Way buildings are in fact highly
visible from most of Port Meadow even as far as Wolvercote and
from the other side of the river, as well as from every other vantage
point (Oxford Canal, railway station etc.)?

Therefore would the leader please suggest any measures which
could be taken to restore the views of the ‘Dreaming Spires’ and
Grade | listed St Barnabas tower from Port Meadow, which would
not involve lowering the roofs of the buildings? And if unable to do
so would he agree that in order to restore the view the roofs must
be lowered?

Does he believe that the choice of white painted walls and reflective
roofs is the best choice for minimising the visibility of the buildings?
If he does not, would he agree that the developer appears to have
made not the slightest effort to minimise their visual impact?

Reply

The officers’ report to West Area Planning Committee of 15"
February 2012 referred at some length to the matter of its built
form and visual impacts, including views from Port Meadow.
Paragraphs 7 to 18 of that report in particular referred to these
issues and concluded by indicating that a judgement had to be
made by members of the committee:

“....as to whether the degree of change to the views and
landscape setting in this direction which would result from the
proposed development is sufficient to warrant refusal of
planning permission, taking into account other benefits and
objectives to be weighed in the balance. Certainly it is not the
case that the development would be entirely hidden from view
from Port Meadow or that there would be no impact from the
development on the landscape setting and on public views.
Rather officers have come to a conclusion, on balance, that with
the mitigation described in place then in similar fashion to the
extant permission the impact is not such that taken in context
with the benefits of the development in provided much needed
purpose built student accommodation at an allocated site that
planning permission should be denied.”

The report to committee included views of Oxford from the Port
Meadow “View Cone” at Wolvercote with advice on the character
and significance of the view so that the officers’ recommendation
could be understood and Members could in turn weigh in the

59



balance the positive and negative impacts with an understanding of
the heritage significance of the view.

Members were not misled about the height of the development. The
report clearly stated that the development would not be screened
from view from Port Meadow, though the intended mitigation would
assist in the development sitting more comfortably within its wider
context. Rather in this view it would sit between a line of trees and
greenery set along the edge of Willow Walk in front of it and a
second line of trees and greenery along the eastern side of the
railway line set behind it. An image was submitted with the planning
application which showed the intended position of the development
compared with the extant 2002 planning permission. This
constituted a suitable representation of the intended development to
assist committee in coming to its decision on the application.

In addition attached to the report to the Committee in Feb 2013 was
an image taken on 24th January 2013 of the development as built.
These and other images were displayed at the committee and
showed that the tree line and that the ‘red line’ photograph were
accurate.

The Head of City Development submitted a report to the West Area
Planning Committee on 7" February 2013 which reviewed the 2012
planning permission (reference11/02881/FUL). The Committee
resolved:-

To instruct the Head of City Development to negotiate with the
University of Oxford in order to ameliorate the size and impact of
the development given planning permission under
11/02881/FUL

To instruct the Head of City Development to submit a report
back to this Committee at the earliest opportunity on the
progress of his negotiations, and by the scheduled April 2013
meeting at the latest

To establish a working party to recommend to the Council any
changes to procedures or policies which the process of handling
and determining the application 11/02881/FUL (including the
pre-application and consultation stages) might suggest would be
desirable.

The University has commissioned consultants, LDA Design, to
prepare a Landscape Mitigation Strategy. This will consider a wide
range of options for mitigation, including options on the buildings,
on site, near but off site and also further afield.

60



(d) Is_the leader content that the Castle Mill development should stand
in its present form as a permanent memorial to his term of office as
Leader of Oxford City Council?

If so, will he encourage the Council’s tourism officer to build on the
little stream of people currently visiting Port Meadow in order to
wonder at this example of contemporary “environmentally sensitive”
(sec. Longcross builders) architecture by promoting such visits and
including views of the development in the city’s tourism literature?

If he is not so content, what remediation measures does he believe
could be undertaken that might restore his pride, and what steps
has his administration taken so far in this direction?

Reply

Development Control is not an executive function and hence is not
determined by the policies of the administration. The planning
process is regulated in a quasi- judicial manner through the
application of Council approved policies, and, in particular, the Core
Strategy. The West Area Planning Committee will no doubt be able
to comment on the mitigation measures proposed by the University
of Oxford, as the developers of this scheme.

Question to Board member for Finance and Efficiency (Councillor
Ed Turner) from Councillor Craig Simmons

Council Tax exempt houses

Can the Portfolio Holder please tell me how frequently the Council
checks that properties with council Tax exemptions are still eligible?

Reply

With the exception of Student exemptions, all awards of Council Tax
discounts and exemptions are reviewed on an annual rolling review
basis.

Student exemptions are awarded to the end date of the course they are
attending or end of the tenancy, whichever is the sooner.

61



Question to the Portfolio Holder for Youth and Communities
(Councillor Bev Clack) from Councillor Dick Wolff

Communities and Neighbourhoods Team

Can the Portfolio Holder please explain how a reduction in the

Communities and Neighbourhoods team will impact on support for area
fora?

Reply

The original restructure documents were agreed by a cross-party
group. There is no reduction in the Communities and Neighbourhoods
team in terms of fulltime equivalent posts. What we have done is to
realign resources to focus on council priorities especially for areas of
greatest need. The Communities & Neighbourhoods Team will provide
the following resource to Area Forums:

There will continue to be a co-ordinated support service to the
organisational aspects of Area Forums;

Support to the annual planning meeting for agreeing Area Forums
topic/location etc;

Publicising meetings and minutes via the website, using social media,
production of standard posters and emailing residents on database;

CAN will administrate the booking of venues for Area Fora up to a
total cost of £150 per annum (Additional costs will have to be met
through ward members’ budgets);

We have also developed an Area Support Officer post within the new
structure which is currently being advertised. This post will carry out
the organisational aspects for the Area Fora. In the meantime the
planning meetings for the Area Fora have been arranged and are
taking place;

In addition each Area Forum meeting will be attended by a member of
the council’s Corporate Management Team to provide a strategic
oversight and deal with any service issues/questions arising.

Question to Board Member for Housing (Councillor Scott
Seamons) from Councillor Craig Simmons

Council House Rent Increases

In the light of the unexpected £1million surplus in the Housing Revenue
Account reported to CEB on 12" June, will the Portfolio Holder re-
consider the above inflation rent (average 4.6%) and service charge
(average 3/.6%) increases it had levied on Council house tenants this
year?

62



Reply

| think it is important to make clear that the £1.2m benefit to the HRA
wasn’t unexpected but couldn’t be guaranteed. It was a result of our
prudent accounting which made provision to cover the risk of an
adverse result of a rent review at Southfield Park and a successful
negotiation that meant that the provision was not needed. The Council
tonight will be asked to confirm a CEB decision to allocate some of this
money for service improvements such as tenancy fraud and
environmental works on estates and a much needed stock survey that
will enable us to have even more effective targeting of our housing
investment programmes.

| think it is also important to point out that this was a one off benefit and
if used to effectively reduce rents then that would erode the income
base of the HRA going forward and would restrict our abilities to
provide excellent services, invest in our existing housing and continue
to build new housing for those most disadvantaged in the City. The City
Council with average rents of £96.83 continues to offer good value for
money when compared with other social housing providers and
certainly the private rented sector. Indeed in a recent survey 77% of
our tenants thought this was the case.

Question to Board Member for Housing (Councillor Scott
Seamons) from Councillor Sam Hollick

Re-classifying spare rooms

In response to the Government’s appalling new bedroom tax, will the
Portfolio Holder consider the approach taken by Leeds Council to help
vulnerable tenants and look into the possibility of re-classifying “spare”
rooms as “non-specific’ rooms in Council housing?

Reply

There is an assumption in the question that is not correct. As one of the
leading authorities as a national pilot in welfare reform we have
examined a whole range of measures that will mitigate the impact of
the changes on our residents including the actions that Leeds and
other Authorities have taken. Clearly Oxford is in a very different
situation to Leeds in not having lots of difficult to let stock and in
already having a classification system that is much tighter in its
interpretation. The reclassification is not as simple as it sounds and
could carry with it risks of retrospective claims for reductions. The net
effect would be a reduction in the income base which would impact
negatively on our HRA business plan and put at risk our continuing
aspiration to provide excellent services, a well maintained stock and
new council housing going forward. Our strategy to mitigate the impact
of welfare reform agreed by Council is to target resources to help

63



10

11

people on a case by case basis with exchanging homes, moving
homes and helping people get back to work.

Question to Board Member for Housing (Councillor Scott
Seamons) from Councillor Sam Hollick

Container Housing

Has the Portfolio Holder considered any innovative solutions to
meeting the City’s housing crisis, for example the provision of high
quality “container” housing, which the Public Sector and Local
Government magazine called “a cost effective and sustainable
approach to building design”?

Reply

This Council cannot be accused of lacking in innovation given our
ground breaking joint venture with Grosvenor Estates to build 350 new
Council homes to a very high standard and for social rent, and our own
new build programme that will provide 112 new units over the next 2
years. Our main problem of course is the availability of land and we will
explore all opportunities to maintain a supply programme going
forward.

Question to Board Member for Housing (Councillor Scott
Seamons) from Councillor Sam Hollick

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)

The board member will be aware of the case brought to councillors'
attention in an email on 15th June, where the council's policy on HMOs
is requiring people to move out of a house where they are living as a
family, because they are not considered a family by the definition of the
policy. Could the board member explain what options they are
considering to prevent council policy from causing disruption to peoples
lives as in this case?"

Reply from Councillor Ed Turner

Firstly, it is not the council’s policy that defines a house in multiple
occupation and what constitutes a family; this is defined in national
legislation made under the Housing Act 2004.

The Council has a policy of licensing houses in multiple occupation,

which clearly needs to be applied consistently, but with appropriate
flexibility.

64



12

The situation in this case is rather more complicated than it would
appear: although the person affected has raised it in both the press
and with many councillors, | do not think it is appropriate to divulge
personal details in this forum, but am happy to speak with the
councillor about the details outside the meeting, and will also be writing
to the person affected.

Question to the Board Member for Cleaner, Greener Oxford
(Councillor John Tanner) from Councillor Craig Simmons

Electric vehicle charging points

Will the Portfolio Holder please explain the reason for the delay in the
installation of electric vehicle charging points, and when we can expect
to see the promised number installed?

Reply

The City Council has provided charging points at car parks as we said
we would. ChargeMaster has responsibility for any increase in the
numbers of electric charging points.

The existing network was installed by Scottish and Southern Energy
(SSE) now owned by ChargeMaster consists of dual charging points at
each of the following Council owned car parks:

Pear Tree, Redbridge and Seacourt Park and Ride
Headington Car Park

Summertown Car Park

Union Street

Westgate Car Park

Worcester Street Car Park

Usage figures for June 2011 to December 2012 (79 charging sessions
in total).

Westgate
Worcester Street
Summertown

St Clements
Headington
Unions Street
Peartree
Seacourt
Redbridge

NelNe)}

N=_ a0 wo

65



13

14

Question to Board Member for Finance and Efficiency (Councillor
Ed Turner) from Councillor Jim Campbell

Oxford Pound

Following recent interest in the media and the apparently successful
introduction of the Bristol Pound in collaboration with the Bristol Credit
Union, will you consider looking into the feasibility of introducing the
Oxford Pound in this city?

Reply

This is an interesting idea, and | understand one which is currently
taken up by 0.2% of Bristol’s population (although arguably one with
some pitfalls, for instance in the appropriate payment of tax!).

However, given the savage cuts imposed upon Oxford City Council by
the Tory / Lib Dem coalition, and recent reports of at least a further
10% average to be hacked off government grant, | do not think | should
ask finance officers to prioritise the promotion of such a scheme when
there are more urgent priorities. However, if another organisation were
to take on the promotion of this, or if the Scrutiny Committee decided it
should be a priority, | am sure we would look at such work with interest.

Question to Board Member for Cleaner, Green Oxford (Councillor
John Tanner) Clir Jean Fooks

Charging point for electric vehicles in North Oxford

Oxford is committed to reducing its carbon footprint each year for the
foreseeable future. One way to do this is to encourage electric
vehicles. North Oxford is trying to set up an e-car club, which needs
charging points for the vehicles. There is a charging point in the
Diamond Place car park but it is not reserved for electric vehicles so is
not always available — and an allocated space is needed. Apparently
the Council is claiming that to reserve this space for electric vehicles
would lose the city £3,500 per year so it is not being progressed.

This seems totally at odds with the aims of the City Council — why is

the Council not supporting this venture? Is the £3,500 figure really
accurate?

Reply

I am continuing to pursue this issue with officers and I will advise Cllr
Fooks when | have made satisfactory progress

66



15

Question to the Board Member for Finance and Efficiency
(Councillor Ed Turner) from Clir Jean Fooks

Westgate Temporary Car Park

The administration is proposing to put almost the entire underspend of
£3.3m for 2012/13 towards temporary car parking to facilitate the
Westgate development. How was this figure arrived at? Where can
Council and the public see the itemised costs?

Reply

In advance of completion of the revised legal documentation for the
Westgate redevelopment between the Council and the Westgate
Oxford Alliance, an informal report was considered by the Cross Party
Working Group on 13" May 2013 in relation to Westgate which,
amongst other things, set out suggested proposals for both temporary
car and coach parking during the scheme of redevelopment. The
estimate of the costs of the works quoted was based on professional
knowledge and enquiry but with only limited information on site
conditions and the like that was available at the time. Following
completion of the conditional development documentation with the
Alliance full design has now been commissioned, detailed
investigations are taking place and detailed costs are being produced.
Clearly the final cost will depend both on the outcome of the
investigations and also the extent of provision which is necessary, so
no breakdown can yet be given.

The intention is that a report will be presented in September to seek
approval to the inclusion of the scheme within the Council’s capital
programme. Pending that approval, the Council has prudently
established a suitable earmarked reserve to cover the cost of these
works. The Council’s support in this matter is set in the overall context
of the investment and the outcomes of the Scheme, and the desire by
the Council to endeavour to protect, to the extent possible during the
construction phase, the prosperity of Oxford and the City Centre. |
would also note that, were the Westgate not to proceed, we would
need to earmark substantial investment to bring the existing Westgate
car park up to scratch.

67



16

Question to Board Member for Cleaner, Green Oxford (Councillor
John Tanner) Clir Jean Fooks

Bulky Waste Collection service
What kinds of domestic waste can be collected by the Bulky waste
collection service?

Reply

Bulky waste refers to items that are too large to be taken away with the
normal refuse collection. This can mean items such as furniture, beds
and mattresses, white goods, fridges and freezers.

We collect the following white goods.

Washing Machine
Dish Washer
Micro Wave
Cooker

Hob

Tumble Dryer

"D QO TD

We also collect televisions, computers and screens from residential
properties.

Due to WEEE regulations we are not able dispose of small electrical
items in landfill. Examples of items covered by the WEEE regulations -
Deep Fat fryers, Electric fires, Fans & Fan Heaters, Hi-Fi's, Hoovers,
Irons, Kettles, Lamps, Printers, Speakers, Stereos. Some of the Bring
Bank sites around the city offer small electrical recycling facilities.

We are unable to collect the following items through the Bulky Waste
Collection Service as they cannot be disposed of at landfill sites.

Asbestos Laminate Flooring
Air Conditioning Units Lawn Mowers (Electric & Petrol)
Baths Mirrors from built in wardrobes - this

does not included mirrors on
wardrobe doors. These types of
mirrors and wall hanging mirrors
must be wrapped in newspaper and
taped down to prevent shattering
when crushed.

BBQ's - Gas, Electrical and drum Oil - Cooking Oil, Car, Diesel
BBQ's

Black Bags - must specify what is \Paint
in a bag, collection of general
rubbish is not allowed on the

Bulky Service.

68



Boilers Paving Slabs
Bricks Photo Copiers
Building Rubble Pianos

Car Parts Planks of Wood
Cardboard - large amounts must |Polystyrene

be flat packed and placed out on

the blue box collection day

Ceiling/Plaster Board Radiators

Cast Iron items / Iron made

Roof guttering/down pipes

Carpet or carpet underlay

Rubbish Bags - must specify what
is in a bag, collection of general
rubbish is not allowed on the Bulky
Service.

Concrete

Sheds

Copper Piping

Sun Tanning Beds

Doors - internal or external

Sinks - kitchen or bathroom

Down Pipes

Storage Heaters - only if the heating
bricks are removed, we will not
collect the bricks

Electrical Items - Due to WEE
regulations we are not able
dispose of electrical items in
landfill. Examples of items
covered by the WEE regulations -
Deep Fat fryers, Electric fires,
Fans & Fan Heaters, Hi-Fi's,
Hoovers, Irons, Kettles, Lamps,
Printers, Speakers, Stereos.

Tiles - wall or floor

Exercise equipment - depending if
it is made of aluminium or
steel and if can be lifted

Toilets

will fit into a garden bag i.e. trees
or bushes

Fencing Panels Tyres
Gas Bottles Water Heating Boilers
Garden Waste - more than what |Windows

Garages and Garage Doors

Wooden Flooring

Heating Boilers

Kitchen Work Tops or Units

Ladders

We aim to recycle as much of the bulky waste we collect as possible,
but if it is not suitable for reuse or recycling then it will go to landfill.
Each household is entitled to 2 free collection visits per year of up to 3

items per Vvisit.

69



17

Question to the Board Member for Corporate Governance and
Strategic Partnerships (Councillor Bob Price) from Clir Jean
Fooks

Email messages to Councillors

We have recently discovered that messages sent by officers to all
councillors have not been getting through- they have disappeared into
the ether. How did this happen and will all ‘lost’ messages be resent?
What measures are being taken to ensure that the new electronic
system provides Councillors with all the reports and attachments they
need?

Reply

The “Councillor all members e mail address is limited to be used by
only certain groups of officers to avoid Councillors being included in
group e mails that are only relevant to a smaller group of Councillors.

Officers are being reminded that if they wish to send an “all Councillor’
e mail that this needs to be sent via either;

The Democratic services team
The Communications team
Their Service Head

Any other officer that uses this e mail address will receive an automatic
e mail advising that their e mail has not been sent as they do not have
the authorisation to do this.

The officer that sent an e mail to all Councillors which raised the
concern that e mails to Councillors were not getting through the e mail
system did not spot the automatic e mail he received after sending the
e mail advising him that his e mail had not got though as he was not
authorised to send e mails to this e mail address.

Officers attaching a copy of an earlier e mail within any message to a

Councillor has been advised that they must attach this as a word
document or PDF so that this can be read on an iPad.

70



Agenda Item 11

PUBLIC ADDRESSES AND QUESTIONS THAT DO NOT RELATE TO
MATTERS FOR DECISION AT THE COUNCIL MEETING.

Part 1: Public Addresses.

1 The MND Charter — Mark Stone

Thank you very much for allowing me to speak to you about how Oxford
City Council can demonstrate its support for Oxfordshire residents who
are living with Motor Neurone Disease by signing the MND Charter.

MND is a rapidly progressive and terminal condition. It can affect any
adult at any time - it attacks the motor neurones that send messages
from the brain to the muscles, leaving people unable to walk, talk or feed
themselves. In Victorian times, it was known as ‘creeping paralysis’ and
that still serves as a good description of what happens.

The cause of the disease is unknown and there is no known cure.
Around 5,000 people in the UK have MND at any one time, with half of
people with the disease dying within 14 months of diagnosis. It kills five
people every day in the UK.

| was diagnosed with MND in January of last year at the John Radcliffe
Hospital, after going to my GP about a slight limp in my right foot. As |
am sure you can imagine, the diagnosis was an unexpected — and a
totally devastating piece of news.

| have lived in Oxford for more than 20 years — originally in Jericho, but
now in East Oxford, off the Cowley Road. My wife is a professional cellist
and we have two daughters, Emma and Isabel, both of whom were born
at the JR & both of whom are at local schools.

Since my diagnosis, | have had the honour of being elected as a Trustee
of the MND Association, the national charity, whose vision is a world free
of MND.

The Association funds and promotes research to understand what
causes MND, how to diagnose it and, most importantly, how to treat it so
that it no longer devastates lives. It provides support and care for people
living with MND, their families and their carers, both nationally — and
locally, through its branch network of volunteers.

| come here supported by

¢ Rachael Marsden, a specialist nurse and Care Co-ordinator of the
Oxford MND Care and Research Centre at the John Radcliffe Hospital

¢ Lynda Wigley, volunteer and chair of the Oxfordshire Branch of the MND
Association

e Moira Mclver, person living with MND, who has lived in Oxford for more

71



than 20 years, first in East Oxford and now in Cumnor.

The Charter is a simple five-point document, created by the Association,
to ensure that people with MND receive the right care, in the right place,
at the right time.

Since its publication in May last year, the Charter has won widespread
support including from:

national organisations like the Royal College of GPs, the Royal
College of Nursing, Rare Diseases UK, the British Association of
Occupational Therapists and the Association of Directors of Adult
Social Services

local organisations like Gloucestershire Care Services, Wiltshire
Council, South Warwickshire NHS Trust and Royal Devon & Exeter
NHS Trust

prominent individuals like Professor Stephen Hawking, Terrence
Higgins, Baroness Susan oGreenfield and Lord Antony Giddens.

Last month | attended a workshop at the Royal Society, hosted by HRH
Princess Anne, which focused specifically on the MND Charter.

At the event, leaders from the Royal College of GPs, the Royal College
of Nursing, the National Council for Palliative Care, the Association of
Directors of Adult Social Services and the Carers Trust all spoke about
the importance of the Charter — and how they supported its adoption
both nationally and locally. Indeed the representative from ADASS spoke
of how he would like to see the Charter adopted by every council in the
country.

Here in Oxford, it has been signed by Oxford University Hospitals Trust,
the Bishop of Oxford John Pritchard, Sir Roger Bannister, Professor
Colin Blakemore and Oxford MPs Andrew Smith & Nicola Blackwood.
Indeed more than a dozen of you here have signed the Charter,
representing all three parties in the City Council.

With its internationally renowned MND Care and Research Centre,
Oxford is recognized as a centre of excellence for both MND care and
for MND research. Its team of specialists, including Rachael Marsden,
who is supporting me here — is almost unparalleled. | know that some of
you went to the inaugural lecture by Professor Kevin Talbot in Nov 2011
— who has the first Professorship of Motor Neuron Biology in the UK.

In March 2012, the Parliamentary Public Accounts Committee produced
a devastating report on Services for People with Neurological
Conditions. Introducing the report, the Chair, Margaret Hodge MP, said:
“individual care is often poorly coordinated and the quality of services
received depends on where you live.”

12



With the structural changes in the last 2 years to public services — and
particularly to the NHS - local authorities like Oxford City Council have
an increasingly important role to play, alongside the NHS, in the support
and care of people with long-term and neurological conditions like MND.

The MND Charter is an important tool for raising awareness of MND
across both the general public and those in the health and social care
professions. It helps raise standards and demonstrates publicly an
organisation’s support for those living with MND, their families and their
carers.

Each of its 5 points addresses specific issues. For example, ‘People with
MND have the right to early diagnosis and information’ speaks to the
difficulty of diagnosing MND and the lack of accurate information &
awareness, particularly amongst those providing care and support.

Diagnosis can take months or even years, with inappropriate referrals
common (as happened to myself) — and it is common to find care
professionals who have no realization of the seriousness of the condition
and speed of progression. When life expectancy after diagnosis can be
measured in months, any delay in providing essential support or
equipment is not merely an inconvenience — but may have a devastating
impact on somebody’s last few months.

For all the above reasons, | hope you will agree that it is entirely
appropriate that the City of Oxford should sign the MND Charter in
support of its citizens living with Motor Neurone Disease.

| would therefore like to propose, with the support of a number of
Councillors, including Councillors Bob Price, Bev Clack, Graham Jones
and Elise Benjamin, that:

“Oxford City Council shows its support for people living with Motor
Neurone Disease by affirming the five principles of the MND
Charter:

1. People with MND have the right to an early diagnosis and
information

2. People with MND have the right to access quality care and
treatments

3. People with MND have the right to be treated as individuals
and with dignity and respect

4. People with MND have the right to maximise their quality of life

5. Carers of people with MND have the right to be valued,
respected, listened to and well-supported.

The City Council demonstrates its affirmation for the above
principles by signing the MND Charter on behalf of the City of

73



Oxford."

On behalf of all of us living with this devastating condition, | hope that
you will support this proposal.

Thank you.

74



2. Building Community Led Homes in Oxford — Fran Ryan, Oxford
Co-Housing

INTRODUCTION

Would you like to live where you know all your neighbours, where your
children can play outside safely and where there’s always someone to
watch out for you as you get older? Where you have the privacy of your
own home and also access to shared facilities such as gardens, dining
room, workshops? This is cohousing. We are a group of Oxford
residents who believe that by pooling our resources we can build such
a community. It won'’t just be for ourselves, but to invite others to join.

We will each have our own front door but we will support each other
and share our skills. Crucially we will reduce our carbon footprint and
our demands on public services.

We know it can be done. There are long established cohousing
developments in Dorset and Gloucestershire, and in the last twelve
months two new ones in Lancaster and Leeds.

Here in Oxford we face great challenges, but with your help we can
succeed.

SO WHO ARE WE?

We are a diverse group but most of us have houses to sell to fund the
project. We started planning about three years ago. We have set up a
Company Ltd by Guarantee and we have local support from both
councillors and Oxford residents. We have been looking for land within
the ring road to build 20-40 homes including the usual quota of
affordable ones. But we’re having to compete with developers who
have deeper pockets than ours. So we’re finding it really hard.

WHY WOULD COHOUSING BE GOOD FOR OXFORD?

Lots of benefits with cohousing: energy efficient homes with small
gardens and shared green space. Car sharing, so we’ll need less land
for parking. Bulk purchase of food will ensure high quality even for
people on £53 a week.

Cooperating with each other and being good neighbours helps meet
our social needs. We already have several members with a disability
and that is a critical strand in our thinking as some of us are feeling our
age. All can be involved in joint activities such as cooking and shared
meals. We know that such cooperatively run housing reduces demand
on local services, and leads to greater wellbeing, citizenship and
happiness.

75



Our scheme will be a good place for children to play together or join in
with adults, such as when they are gardening and maintaining the site.
Everyone in a cohousing community feels more secure.

We could say much more now but instead invite you to read more by
looking at the attached leaflet or visiting us via our website (see end).

HOW YOU CAN HELP

We invite you to join us but even more to support our enterprise. You
could make Oxford City a leading edge council in supporting
community-led housing projects.

There are three specific things we’d like you to do:

1. LAND: Help us find land: We need 172 acres or so within the ring
road. But most of all we need some kind of preferred bidder status
because we can’t raise money as quickly as the big developers. For
example having some extra time between contract and completion
would help us raise the cash to pay for land. If we buy at a below-
market price we will lock in the benefit to keep the homes permanently
affordable.

2. POLICY: Enable this project by being flexible with your policies.
2.1 Planning: It may be that the only suitable land is not currently
designated for housing. We may need flexibility around parking (we’d
want fewer cars than is usual). We may want higher density homes to
keep land for gardens.

2.2 Nominations: \We will need flexibility around nominations. We want
a mixed community. If nearly half our residents are going to come from
the Housing Needs Register we need to think about how best to do this
so as not to compromise the social viability of the project. We want
people who will commit to our cooperative way of working and put time
into our project. So we need to find them early to participate in our
planning process. Several officers and councillors have already shown
openness to this. We need a firm agreement in principle now, pending
formalizing it in the planning legal agreement. There needs to be a
double hurdle for access to the cohousing social rented homes: people
being nominated for social homes must show not just evidence of
housing need but also commitment to the project.

2.3 Local lettings: We want to benefit people from our immediate
area: if we build in Wolvercote we would want some social rented
homes to go to people with a Wolvercote connection. Your current
policy doesn’t allow this.

2.4: Existing council tenants: \Ne want members who already live in

social rented homes to be able to move into cohousing. Currently there
is no provision for that without downsizing.

76



3. PROJECT WORKER: Take the lead and joint-fund a project worker
with us to support community-led homes including cohousing. No
other city has done this.

We have some cash to fund a project worker. Meet us half way and
help us to do this.

AND FINALLY...

Picture a future in which you have enabled us to set up several
supportive mixed tenure communities in the city. And a model for
others to follow across the UK.

(Contact: Fran Ryan, Oxford Cohousing, June 14™ 2013 07889
209448 fran@peopleincharge.co.uk)

77



The Consultation Process - William Clark

| was heartened by the last meeting to hear the encouraging words
coming from the opposition benches on the topic of consulting with
groups who are opposed to the new swimming pool on Blackbird Leys.
However the councillor on this side said it would be a clear waste of his
time and effort. Well let me refer him to a national statesman who lies
only a few miles north of Oxford in Bladon and he stated “it is better to
jaw jaw than to war war” and he should know as he endured both
activities.

It does make me wonder just what the Labour group are all about! |
thought “naively” it was to support all members of a parish/district not
just those who voted them into office.

| can see the Liberal Democrats, Greens and Independents have a
system which allows for a free vote whatever the topic, unless I'm
missing something” As for the Labour group | am ashamed to say your
idea of democracy leaves a lot to be desired. | have been attending this
place for a good few meetings and witnessed a fair few votes taken
and it strikes me that if the leader puts his hand up they all do just like
good little puppies. Well let me tell you something for free you are
creating the perfect storm scenario, you have alienated countless
residents and groups across the city and as my grandmother used to
say, [wise old lady she was] “as you sow the wind so you reap the
whirlwind” which will come sooner rather than latter which will see large
chunks of this chamber turned to other colours other than red. And
what about the Conservative party they own all areas outside Oxford
City but there is not one representative on this council, so who will
support the Tory voter if not you, where is their voice in this chamber.

I's my view you don’t care about the voter who put you here, you don't
care about the lives you have blighted with accommodation blocks or
swimming pools. Let’s just examine the last statement again, “who is
affected most by the closure of the Blackbird Leys swimming pool — the
elderly and the young — why because it is a nice warm pool suitable for
their bodies. Who will be affected most by the creation of your white
elephant — the elderly and the young — why the population facing the
green space is predominantly pensionable age who only want a quiet
life not this noisy thing they will get, and the young — why at the
moment the other residents living along Pegasus Road want their
children to play safe and the park opposite offers that choice, after all
said and done they can’t play on the green outside their house
because you have erected signs saying no ballgames so it has to be
across the road and into the playing field. | do think there is more than
a touch of discrimination in this chamber as you only appear to be
looking after yourselves and always toe the party line.

78



But what do | know | am only one of the ageing population who had to
earn respect the hard way by doing what is right and treating people
fairly which brings me right back to the councillor responsible for leisure
why won’t you talk with us, is it too much of an effort to fit into your
busy schedule or have | been speaking the truth all along and you are
afraid your leader will use the whip on you?

79



Openness and Transparency — Nigel Gibson.

At the last Full Council Meeting on the 22nd of April, | gave an address
introducing the latest petition from the Save Temple Cowley Pools
Campaign. Over 1,500 people had signed the petition, asking you to
explain openly and transparently, in complete contrast to how you have
responded before, your reasons for removing a leisure centre from
Temple Cowley, the focus of so many communities across East Oxford
and beyond, and key to many thousands of people maintaining their
fitness and quality of life. We were extremely disappointed that the then
Labour CEB Member for Leisure Services refused to engage, and we
were all left wondering, as articulated by Green Councillor Benjamin,
“‘What have you got to hide?”

The lack of transparency was only underlined by the reference to the
minutes of the meeting between the Campaign and the MACE
architects. | have clearly demonstrated, it seems endlessly, that all the
information from the Council concerning the proposed new swimming
pool and the close of Temple Cowley Pools is a combination of
misleading, inaccurate, incomplete and untrue, and the minutes of this
meeting are an exemplar. The meeting between the Campaign and the
MACE architect was authorised by one of your Executive Directors,
Tim Sadler, at the public meeting in August 2010 when MACE
presented their plans for the proposed new swimming pool in Blackbird
Leys. It seems a long time ago, but it is the only meeting that we have
had with council representatives. The minutes, as you like to

call them, were taken without reference to the Campaign, we have
never been asked to check or validate them, and they completely
misrepresent what actually happened. They were incorrectly used in
Planning meetings, and were again incorrectly referenced at the last
Council Meeting.

This lack of openness and transparency in the Council’s dealing with
the public has been a theme running through the Campaign over nearly
four years, and is becoming increasingly pervasive in your dealings
with other campaigns as well, where members of the public quite rightly
expect their council to properly explain what is going on.

In my address at the last meeting, | explained that any local authority
has a public law obligation to review its decisions if circumstances
change. | further explained that circumstances had changed
significantly in relation to your decision to close Temple Cowley Pools,
taken back in July 2011. | expected that the Council would respond, but
| heard nothing. So | then wrote to our Chief Executive, Peter Sloman,
and asked him, very clearly, to provide the Council’s position on two
points:

- Does Oxford City Council acknowledge that there is an obligation on
local authorities to review their decisions, and if so,

80



- Will Oxford City Council review its decision to close Temple Cowley
Pools given that circumstances have changed?

These were not trick questions, just very simply trying to find out the
Council’s position. Bizarrely, Mr Sloman’s response was firstly to not
answer the question and secondly to dismiss my enquiry as vexatious.
Now, | have many better things to do with my time than try and annoy a
Council Chief Executive.

And this refusal to deal with the public is becoming a very worrying
trend within Oxford City Council. When | challenged Clir Rowley, the
new CEB Member for Leisure Services, with evidence that his
interviews were misleading the public, he also refused to respond. And
we learn recently that your legal department’s advice to councillors,
which apparently you have to follow, is not to meet with members of
the Campaign. Is it any Campaign, or just this one, we wonder?

No explanation. No openness. No transparency. \What have you got to
hide?

Well, we’re going to try again to find out. There are several stages to a
Judicial Review. The first is to try and resolve things without going to
law. I've done that, and Mr Sloman, for reasons that are unclear and in
a response that will be seen in an unfavourable light by a court, has
refused to respond positively. The next stage is a pre-action protocol —
this is where | formally set out why | think the Council should be
reviewing its decision to close Temple Cowley Pools. The Council can
then respond, and if | am satisfied with the answer, the matter goes no
further.

The final stage is then moving formally to an application for a Judicial
Review. You have a choice. If you commit funds while this process is
going on, in the knowledge that you may lose a Judicial Review, then
you are not only wasting public funds but are also guilty of
maladministration. Or, you have the opportunity to resolve matters
now, by stopping any more work on the proposed new pool, while
establishing clearly, openly and transparently why you won’t review
your decision.

The choice is yours.

Response

In July 2011 CEB delegated authority to the Executive Director
Community Services, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer, to
award a contract for the build of the new pool. That report recognised
that legal challenges may mean that the contract would not "go live" for
some time. After a procurement exercise was completed the contract
was let in March 2012 to Willmott Dixon. Due to legal challenges and
anticipating further delays that contract contained two conditions

81



precedent relating to the dismissal or withdrawal of two legal
challenges - the request for Judicial Review of the Council's decision
making process by Nigel Gibson and the a request for Judicial Review
by Mrs Zani of the County Council's decision to reject an application to
have Blackbird Leys Park declared a Town Green.

On satisfaction of these two conditions precedent, the contract by
definition became unconditional, and therefore active.

Mr Gibson applied for Judicial Review of the CEB’s July 2011 decision
in regard to closing the Temple Cowley pool, but after twice failing to
obtain consent from the Administrative Court, he finally discontinued
his application in March 2013.

Mrs. Zani’s application to have the County’s decision judicially
reviewed has now been withdrawn and therefore the County Council's
decision not to register the land as a Town Green stands.

From the above you will see that the conditions precedent in the
contract have been met, and as a consequence the contract is now
active. There has been no material change in the relevant
circumstances concerning the need for the facility or the Council's
ability to pay for it, and preparations to commence on site are therefore
now well advanced.

82



Oxford University Students Union Charities and Community —
Daniel Tomlinson and Sarah Santhosham

Thank you for allowing us to address you today. My name is Sarah
Santhosham and | am the outgoing Vice President for Charities and
Community at Oxford University Student Union. A year ago | came
along to Full Council to introduce myself and outline my vision for the
year by working with you to achieve a stronger community. I’'m here
today to outline what we have achieved by working in partnership and
to introduce my successor, Daniel Tomlinson, whom | hope you will
work with over the year ahead to continue the progress we have made.

Over the last year we have made a lot of progress in a number of
areas, through our new initiatives and projects, the representation of
students in the community and through our charitable fundraising. The
permanent establishment of our Community Warden scheme has
made a lot of difference to the relationship between students and
residents on the ground; the wardens visit households to foster good
relations and spread useful information, and they are well equipped to
deal with the new intake of students next term. Another project | have
been pleased to work on is a scheme to foster partnerships between
local primary schools and College sports grounds; we have worked
with a number of local organisations, including the Council’s Leisure
and Parks Department, to lay the groundwork and | am confident that
this will translate into actual schemes next year. | am particularly
grateful to City Councillors for part funding the first Oxford Volunteering
Showcase earlier this year; the event attracted 47 stall holders and
provided a good opportunity for students and permanent residents to
interact around shared activities, from community volunteering, to
environmental work, and educational volunteering in the City.

On the representation front, the Oxford Student Community
Partnership Group, a group which brings together stakeholders from
across the city to discuss matters affecting students as residents, has
been going strong, and | am grateful to the Councillors who have made
a valuable contribution to this group over the year. We have also
continued to represent students through area forums, NAGs and police
groups. One of the highlights of my year has been the ability to work
with and direct Oxford RAG, the main student fundraising groups in the
University. Since April 2012 we have raised around £109,000 for a
range of charities, including the local charities Jacari, Helen & Douglas
House, Crisis Skylight Oxford and the Oxford Food Bank; hearing how
this money will be used for the benefit of the local community has been
a real privilege and Oxford RAG is in a good place to be able to raise
even larger amounts next year.

It has been a pleasure to work with students at the University to effect
change, and in particular with the City Council and individual
Councillors this year. This year has taught me how much can be
achieved when organisations work together on issues that affect us all

83



and | hope that the partnership we have as a student union with
Councillors and the City Council will remain strong in the future.

(Daniel Tomlinson)

| will be taking on Sarah’s role as Vice-President for Charities and
Community at the Oxford University Student Union for the next
academic year.

| plan on continuing many of the projects that Sarah, and yourselves,
have worked on up to this point. Notably, in the ‘community’ part of my
role | will continue to work on:-

- The Community Wardens Scheme

- The project to open up Oxford Colleges Playing Fields to Local
Schools

- The Living Wage Campaign

| also want to thank you for assisting with funding the Oxford
Volunteering Showcase and hope that we will be able to work together
in similar ways over the next year.

Further to the projects that Sarah, and OUSU, already work on | hope
that we will be able to work together on 3 further issues:-

- Increasing student engagement with the issue of homelessness in our
city

- Increasing cycle safety and reducing cycle theft

- Making the University and its buildings more accessible to the local
community

If you would like to contact me you should be able to find my contact
details in the agenda. Over the summer | plan to meet with a large
number of partners such as yourselves and | look forwards to working
with you over the next year.

Daniel Tomlinson, Vice President (Charities & Community), Oxford
University Student Union (charities@ousu.org)

84



Full Circle and Charity Mentors — Rowen Smith

About Full Circle

Full Circle is a charitable organisation which began working in
Oxfordshire in 2000. Currently based in primary and secondary
schools, it brings children and older people together on a weekly basis,
with the aim of nurturing friendship and understanding between
generations.

About Charity Mentors

Charity Mentors supports charity and social enterprise managers to
improve the all round performance of services. It provides mentors who
can help clarify goals, consider options and plan outcomes. The
mentoring is free. All the mentors have had senior leadership roles and
experience, in the voluntary sector.

What we can do — the innovation of the project and how it can benefit
Councillors?

85



Part 2: Public Questions

Q1

Q2

Question to the Board Member for Leisure (Councillor Mike
Rowley) from Andrew Brough

It is very important that children living in the vicinity of rivers and
waterways are able to learn to swim and have proper swimming pool
facilities near to where they live, to avoid the tragedies that have
happened in recent years. When there is only one pool in Blackbird
Leys, instead of the existing two pools in Blackbird Leys and Temple
Cowley, how will the Council make sure that children still have the
same amount of time for learning to swim?

When Temple Cowley Pool was completely rebuilt in 1987, the Oxford
branch of the British sub-aqua club was unable to regain their training
session slots on Wednesday and Friday evenings. The existing
Blackbird Leys Pool has many small group users. Examples have
included canoe safety training and aqua aerobics. How will all these
groups be accommodated when the two pools in Blackbird Leys and
Temple Cowley are replaced by one in Blackbird Leys?

Reply

The new pool has a teaching pool, splash water and an eight lane 25
meter pool. The eight-lane pool also has a moveable floor that

enables greatly improved programming for both swimming lessons and
mobility water sessions. We have also continued to offer free
swimming and targeted free swimming lessons to young people in the
city.

Question to the Board Member for Leisure (Councillor Mike
Rowley) from Sue Brough

Could you please give full details (dates, names of people present,
points discussed, any outcomes or action points, etc.) of the public
consultation meeting(s) which took place before the City Council
decided to spend £9.2 million building one new 25m pool in Blackbird
Leys, closing the two existing pools and selling off the Temple Cowley
site; and has the decision been reviewed since the latest Census Data
from 2011 became available?

Reply

While we would not provide names, the council’s web pages contain
the detailed consultation information.

86



Q3

Q4

Question to the Leader of the Council (Councillor Bob Price) from
Cathy Wheeler, Oxford Voice.

| am increasingly concerned at how Oxford City Council is Profiting
from Selling or donating land and retreating from providing Services,
particularly in East Oxford; this is bewildering to the hard-pressed
Council Tax payers of Oxford.

It is imperative for the open and transparent local

Authority Democracy at Oxford City to be able to effectively hold our
elected councillors and the overly financially rewarded Executive
Officers to account for their decisions, and that the governance
structure is properly understood.

Can you please explain the Legal and Corporate Status of Oxford City
Council: for example, is Oxford City Council a for profit Corporation? If
Oxford City Council is a Corporation, what is the Trading Name, and
what happens to the Profits? Is Oxford City Council a Co operative?

Is Oxford City Council a Public Limited Company?

Or is Oxford City Council Company limited by Shares?

If Oxford City Council has shareholders, who are these Shareholders?

Reply

Oxford City Council is a local authority with powers regulated by the
various Local Government Acts. All financial and other monitoring
information about the Council’s policies and services to the people of
the City can be found on the Council’s website.

Question to the Leader of the Council (Councillor Bob Price) from
Sietske Boeles

Regarding the potential risk to public health and the environment
posed by the Castle Mill development, could the Leader confirm:-

(1) that the Council has allowed this development to go ahead on
land which it knew to be contaminated with highly toxic
pollutants such as asbestos and polycyclic Aromatic
Hydrocarbons (PAHSs), which are linked to birth defects and
cancer; and elevated levels of metals such as lead with are
linked to brain abnormalities in children;

(i) that the Council’s environmental health officer identified in
December 2012 that adjacent allotments may be at risk and
requested further surveys to assess risk on surrounding sites;

(i) that surveys submitted recently on behalf of the developers have
shown that groundwater is contaminated with PAHSs, that these

87



are well above safe levels, and that the Environment Agency
has required further surveys.

In view of the above, what reassurances can the leader offer the
people of Oxford that this development has not posed, and does not
continue to pose, a risk to public health and the environment ?
Specifically, can the leader confirm:-

(1) that no contaminants, including contaminated dust, has spread
outside the development site;

(i) that it is safe for people to visit Cripley Meadow allotments, and
consume the food produced there;

(i) that an assessment has been carried out to determine whether
any damage has been caused, or is being caused by the
development to Port Meadow, which is both a SAC and SSSI.

If the leader cannot offer the above reassurances, will the Council
issue an immediate stop notice or explain why it does not believe that
this is necessary.

Reply

The Planning Committee imposed a condition as part of the planning
permission for the development which required the developer to
undertake tests and produce data and reports which would indicate
whether any significant risk exists and what, if any, steps might be
taken to address that risk..

That condition has not yet been discharged.

Interim results were received and this led the Council, working in
conjunction with Environment Agency (EA), to require a detailed
quantitative risk assessment (DQRA) in accordance with model
procedures. This has just been completed and the results are now
being analysed by the EA and the Council.

There are no data or reports that demonstrate an unacceptable risk
exists to public health on the allotments. Site investigations were
carried out between 2008 and 2011 and levels of contaminants were
below the threshold for determining the site as contaminated land.
Precautionary advice was given to allotment holders which included
washing hands before eating and washing/peeling vegetables grown
on the site before consumption. This advice remains sound today.

No assessment has been made to determine whether any damage has
been caused or is being caused by potential contamination on the land
of the Castle Mill development. This is because such an assessment
has not been requested by Natural England or the Environment

88



Q5

Agency as the Statutory Consultees and because Port Meadow is
separated from the development site by the allotments and the Castle
Mill Stream.

Question to the Board Member for Leisure Services (Councillor
Mike Rowley) from Jane Alexander

The Oxford City Council Summer 2013 “Your Oxford Paper’ had a
small article within it which headlined ‘Better Access to leisure
facilities’. Does Oxford City Council accept this as an oxymoron
because:-

1. You are actually closing two swimming pools and replacing them
with one and removing a gym which is open from 6am until 10pm
and replacing it with a gym that cannot be open to the general
public in school hours;

2. Individuals with the concessions membership scheme will be unable
to use this facility;

3. Without canvassing those who already regularly use the Temple
Cowley pool and fitness centre it is unclear how many people will
want to attend a school to use the gym, especially one that will be
open for a much shorter period and that will be busy in terms of
mechanical and pedestrian traffic at very particular times (excluding
some morning use if it was offered) and that is in a poorly lit area at
night.

And how will the council either remedy this inaccurate article or actually
improve in real terms access to leisure facilities inside the ring road in
East Oxford, for example by keeping Temple Cowley Pools open?

Reply

The article is entirely accurate. The new pool is a city-wide facility and
when it opens the East of Oxford will for the first time have a top-
quality, modern, integrated leisure centre to compare with what North
Oxford has in Ferry Leisure Centre. The partnership with Oxford
Spires Academy will help to ensure that Temple Cowley continues to
have a good local leisure offer.

Our approach to leisure is detailed in the city’s leisure strategy, and it is
a continuing success. Since 2006 the city has had the third highest
increase in activity nationally with 27.8% of adults now doing at least 3
x 30 minute sessions of exercise each week. This puts Oxford City
Council in the top 20 Councils in England for leisure participation.

89



Q6

Question to the Board Member for City Development (Councillor
Colin Cook) from Adrian Arbib

Re: Red line photo montages, dated December 21, 2011 and now
available on the planning portal, regarding the Roger Dudman Way
development.

Can the portfolio holder confirm that these photo montages, including
the red line, were submitted by the developer and if so when?

And when were they made available to (a) the public and (b)
councillors? Were they submitted with the wirelines?

There are 13 of them in total and presumably they were all loaded at
the same time?

Were these photo montages available to councillors when they
determined the planning application in February 20127

Reply

The photographs including the’ red line’ plan or wireline were submitted
by the Applicant, the University.

The photographs from Port Meadow indicating the location of the
development were received and uploaded to the website on 21st
December 2011. They were available to be viewed by the public and
councillors from this date.

The red and white wirelines were mounted up on the website at a later
date, on 8th February 2012, having been received a day or two earlier.
The committee met on 15th February 2012 and all these images were
available to Councillors when they met.

90



Agenda Iltem 16

Item 16: Motions on Notice.

1 Financial Transactions Tax (Proposed by Councillor Bob Price,
seconded by Councillor James Fry)

This Council declares its support for the introduction of a Financial
Transactions Tax across the European Union and G12 economies as an
important contribution by the banking and finance sector to the funding of
public investment in education, housing, infrastructure and social security."'

2 Community Budgets (Proposed by Councillor Jean Fooks)

Council notes that:

Public sector cuts would have been made whichever party was in national
government (as the former Labour Chief Secretary to the Treasury put it,
“There is no money left”) and all parties have to work together to find a
solution to this problem.

This Council is facing increasing pressures on available budgets due to the
cuts in Government funding and the extra burdens placed on it by the welfare
cuts. Staff are working to help those affected by cuts in benefits with advice
and support but are limited by the particular local situation of an acute
shortage of affordable homes and the highest rents outside London.

Council recognises that the whole-place Community Budget pilots have
shown the potential for delivering better services at less cost by the approach
to transforming public services by integration and demand reduction. It
believes that Oxford would benefit hugely from such an approach.

Council notes that the Local Government Association commissioned Ernst
and Young to review the potential for the aggregation of whole place
community budgets. The report notes that community budgets have the
potential to deliver better outcomes and realise substantial financial benefits;
with the potential of a net benefit of five years of between £9.4bn and
£20.6bn.

Council also recognises that the current government has been working with
councils across the country on the Troubled Families programme, with an
additional £448 million to support this work. Council urges the government to
build on this cross departmental working and extend Community Budgets

Council therefore asks the Leader to write to the Oxford MPs asking them to
support the LGA’s call for Community Budgets to be extended nationally as
the preferred local delivery mechanism for government departments, with
appropriate support to local areas to ensure that the maximum benefits are
felt from the change.

91



3 Tar Free Oxford (Proposed by Councillor Sam Hollick)

This council notes that: Canada’s tar sands are the biggest energy project
in the world. Already, millions of barrels of tar sands oil have been extracted
from the Canadian wilderness, decimating the landscape and producing 3.2 to
4.5 times more greenhouse gas emissions than conventional oil extraction (as
calculated for example by the US Government’s National Energy Technology
Laboratory). Nearby First Nations communities are also being devastated by
the loss of their traditional lands and access to food and medicine. In 2008,
Alberta Health confirmed a 30 per cent rise of cancer rates between 1995 —
2006 in Fort Chipewyan, a nearby community.

Although tar sands oil hasn'’t yet arrived in the UK in significant quantities, its

large-scale import is highly likely as Canada attempts to find new markets for
export. Opening up Europe and the UK to tar sands would be a green light for
more reckless expansion of this huge industry.

This council also notes that the City Council’'s Carbon Management Plan
states that the council “places environmental sustainability and carbon
reduction at the heart of everything that the Council does”, and believes that
an important part of the city’s responsibility in “provid[ing] wider leadership...in
reducing the overall carbon footprint of the City” is rejecting tar sands for the
carbon-intensive fuel that they are.

This council therefore resolves to:

1. Rejects tar sands as an acceptable source of liquid fuel, and declare
Oxford a ‘Tar Free City’;

2. Include measures in its future liquid fuels procurement policies which
will ensure that tar sands will not be part of the fuel mix it purchases for
its vehicle and plant fleet.

4 Supermarket Levy (Proposed by Councillor Craig Simmons,
seconded by Councillor David Williams)

This Council notes the national campaign by Local Works to gather support
from local authorities wishing to make a submission under the Sustainable
Communities Act to introduce a ‘Supermarket Levy’.

This proposal would give local authorities the power to levy a new local rate of
8.5% on large retail outlets in their area with a rateable value not less than
£500,000 and the power to use the revenue collected to improve social and
community wellbeing and environmental protection.

There is precedent for this already in Northern Ireland where, in 2012, the
Northern Ireland Assembly legislated for just such a Levy.

92



This Council believes that Oxford would benefit from such a Levy which would
help boost local jobs, local trade, local services and local communities.

This Council therefore asks the CEB to write to Local Works stating their
support for the Supermarket Levy campaign and commence the process of
making a submission under the Sustainable Communities Act.

5 Supporting Youth Employment (Proposed by Councillor David
Williams, seconded by Councillor Sam Hollick

This Council recognises that youth unemployment is now an extremely
serious issue with damaging long term social and personal consequences.

In accordance with its own priorities, Oxford City Council therefore seeks to
establish from its suppliers evidence that they have employees drawn from all
age cohorts and do not neglect young people.

Council therefore agrees that a condition of securing a contract to supply
goods and services to Oxford City Council will be that the contracting
company must have at least 5% of its registered workforce under the age of
23. (Applicable to all companies with a workforce of 25 or more employees).

This Council asks CEB to amend the Council's Procurement Policy

accordingly.

6 Impartiality of Planning Process (Proposed by Councillor David
Williams, seconded by Councillor Elise Benjamin)

This Council believes that both Councillors and officers must act, and be seen
to act, in an impartial and objective way if public faith in the planning process
is to be enhanced.

There is already a requirement under the Employee Code of Conduct for each
Service Area to maintain a Register of Gifts and Hospitality, but members of
the public are unable to easily access this information.

Council therefore resolves that, in the interest of openness and transparency:
1) All Service Area Registers of Gifts and Hospitality should be made
readily available to Councillors and members of the public via a link on
the Council website; and

2) Planning Applications should include reference to any related
disclosures.

93



7

Supporting the Robin Hood Tax (Proposed by Councillor Elise
Benjamin)

Council notes that:

as a result of the economic crisis, unemployment has become a
serious concern;

local government will see real term cuts in central grant of 28% over
the 2010;

Comprehensive Spending Review period, meaning a cut of £6bn in
annual grant by 2015;

extending the current Financial Transaction Tax (FTT) on shares to
other asset classes such as bonds and derivatives could raise £20bn of
additional revenue in the UK a year; and;

At least 11 European nations including France, Germany, Italy and
Spain are moving ahead with FTTs on shares, bonds and derivatives
estimated to raise £30bn a year.

Council believes that:

revenues from the FTT could help repair the damage caused by cuts in
public services since 2010;

local government deserves to receive a significant proportion of FTT
revenues, making an important contribution to both capital and revenue
expenditure such as reversing cuts to council tax benefits; and that
whilst an FTT might have a negligible effect on jobs in the City of
London, investing FTT revenues in a smart and progressive way would
see a significant increase in employment levels in other sectors.

Council resolves that:

the UK government should extend the current FTT on shares to other
asset classes, such as bonds and derivatives.

Council further resolves to:

write to the Prime Minister, Deputy Prime Minister, Leader of the
Opposition, Chancellor and Shadow Chancellor of the Exchequer, and
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government stating this
council’s support for extending FTTs; and;

write to all local MPs outlining the Council’s position.

94



	Agenda
	6 Public addresses and questions that relate to matters for decision at the Council meeting
	7 Executive Board recommendations
	10 Questions on Notice from Members of Council
	11 Public addresses and questions that do not relate to matters for decision at the Council meeting
	16 Motions on Notice

